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Directors’ Review
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the condensed interim 
consolidated financial statements for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

Domestic Economy

Pakistan’s growth trajectory continued in FY18 with a thirteen-year high GDP growth of 5.8%. Real economic activity 
maintained its momentum from the previous year; the agriculture, industry and services sectors all delivered an 
improved performance with LSM growth of 6% during 11M FY18. Average inflation remained contained, and well 
below targeted levels at 3.9%; however, the trend is changing rapidly as headline inflation for June 2018 reached 
5.2% and positive developments on the growth front remain tempered by a sharp deterioration in the twin deficits, 
intensifying the economic challenges. 

After declining in FY17, a strong export recovery of 13% has been more than offset by the sheer size of the import bill 
which, driven by rising oil prices and a strong demand for productive imports, grew by 15%. Consequently, the trade 
deficit widened by 16% to over USD 31 billion. Although the declining trend in remittances was arrested, growth 
remained elusive with remittances not even recovering to their FY16 levels. The current account deficit increased by 
43% to USD 18 billion which, at 5.7% of GDP, is an all-time high. With limited financial account inflows, FX reserves 
continued to decline, falling by 23% during the fiscal year to USD 16.4 billion. The Rupee has been under severe pressure 
with four devaluations since December 2017 eroding its value by 15%. 

The fiscal deficit, which was budgeted to reduce to 4.1% of GDP, has instead increased further, and is estimated at 
6.8% compared to 5.8% in FY17. Despite provisional estimates of an 11% increase in tax collection over the previous 
year, shortfalls to revenue targets remain. The response from the tax amnesty scheme has been below expectations, 
although there is some expectation that the resultant widening of the tax base would result in higher future tax 
revenue. 

The precarious external account has led international rating agencies to take a more critical view on Pakistan. While 
affirming the country’s B3 ratings, Moody’s downgraded its Outlook from Stable to Negative citing dwindling foreign 
reserves, the burgeoning current account deficit and declining access to external financing. Fitch maintained its 
Outlook at Negative, highlighting largely similar concerns. 

The uncertainty created by the political situation in the run up to the elections had led to the stock market being 
bearish for an extended period, with a net outflow of over USD 100 million in foreign portfolio investment in 2018. 
Equities have recovered somewhat post the elections, with the PSX rallying by 3.3% to post a gain of 5% since the 
start of the year. 

In its July monetary policy statement, the SBP increased the policy rate by 100 bps to 7.5%, the first increase of this 
magnitude since 2008. The reversal of the interest rate cycle is now in full swing with three hikes in 2018. The SBP cited 
pressure on the external account and highlighted risks to macroeconomic stability from the substantial fiscal deficit, 
higher oil imports and rising inflationary pressures. Private sector credit offtake increased by over Rs 800 billion (18%) 
in FY18, a significant improvement over the Rs 697 billion growth in FY17. Banking sector advances have increased by 
14% over December 2017, while deposits rose by 6%. Average banking spreads compressed by 17 bps compared to the 
same period last year as the rate increases during the first half of the year will only have a lagged effect on asset yields.

Performance

HBL’s domestic business continued its growth momentum, with deposits increasing by 8% over December 2017 
to nearly Rs 1.9 trillion, and market share rising to 14.4%. In this period, the Bank added Rs 119 billion in domestic 
CASA deposits, further improving the CASA ratio to 86.6% as at June 30, 2018. The growth momentum in current 
deposits delivered a 9.8% growth in just six months. Current accounts reached nearly Rs 690 billion and their share 
in the deposit mix improved by 70 bps to 36.3% in June 2018. With a renewed focus on quality lending growth, HBL’s 
domestic loan book increased by 13% over December 2017 with corporate loans, Islamic financing and consumer 
lending making key contributions. 
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HBL’s reported financial performance remains impacted by the revision in pension costs, the impact of the multiple 
currency devaluations on overseas borrowings and the remediation, legal and regulatory costs related to the Bank’s 
New York branch. In addition, the accelerated shrinkage in the international balance sheet has resulted in significantly 
reduced revenues and while the cost profile has improved, further reductions will be gradual.  As a result, HBL’s profit 
before tax for the first six months of 2018 is Rs 14.1 billion.  Profit after tax for the same period is Rs 8.1 billion, with 
earnings per share for H1 18 at Rs 5.42.

Average domestic loans for H1’18 grew by 28% over H1’17, with all businesses registering significant increases, and 
average domestic current accounts for the first six months of 2018 increased by 15% over H1’17. This improvement 
in the Balance Sheet composition more than alleviated the lower spread which declined by 30 bps YoY, as a result of 
lower investment yields. Domestic net interest income for H1’18 is thus 1% higher than for the first six months of 
2017. However, with international revenues under pressure, HBL’s total net interest income reduced by 3% YoY to  
Rs 40.3 billion.

Core FX income improved by 10% as Trading revenues delivered a strong performance. Domestic fee income rose by 
8% over H1’17, excluding the impact of the expected drop in revenue from home remittances, as volumes have fallen 
by over 70%. Account operations, consumer finance and card related fees were key contributors to the growth in 
fees and commissions. The strong core domestic performance was impacted by a Rs 1.0 billion reduction in fees and 
commissions from the international business and by the drop in the Rupee which resulted in a loss of Rs 2.5 billion on 
revaluation of overseas borrowings. Total non mark-up income is therefore reported at Rs 10.7 billion, Rs 5.7 billion 
lower than in H1’17. 

The Bank has embarked on a global business and compliance transformation project through which it intends to raise 
its operations and customer service to world-class levels. HBL will continue to invest in this area, in state of the art 
technology, and in building on its market leading brand presence. Excluding the impact of pensions, and the ongoing 
costs of New York and business transformation, the growth in administrative expenses was contained at single digits. 
A positive recovery stream has led to a Rs 2.7 billion reduction in domestic non-performing loans, while overseas 
NPLs have increased as a result of the currency devaluation. Consequently, loan provisions have recorded a reversal of  
Rs 240 million, compared to a provision of Rs 564 million in H1 17. With stable NPLs, the coverage ratio strengthened 
to 91.7% and the infection ratio, down to 7.6%, is at its lowest level since the privatization of the Bank.

Movement of Reserves
Rs million

Unappropriated profit brought forward - restated 96,974
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 7,943
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligations – net 287
Share of re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations of associate - net (4)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets – net of tax 30

8,256

Profit available for appropriations 105,230

Appropriations
Transferred to statutory reserves (869)
Cash Dividend – Final 2017 (1,467)
Cash Dividend – 1st Interim 2018 (1,467)
Capital contribution to statutory funds of associates (0)

(3,803)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 101,427

Earnings per share (Rupees) 5.42
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Capital Ratios

In June 2018, HBL was designated as a Domestic Systemically Important Bank (D-SIB) and is the only bank in the 
highest category “C”, which requires the Bank to reserve an additional Tier 1 capital of 2% of Risk Weighted Assets. 
With this in mind, HBL continues to follow a conservative dividend policy and optimize its Risk Assets. As a result, the 
Capital Adequacy Ratios continued to improve – the Tier 1 CAR rose by 79 bps from December 2017 to reach 12.8% 
and the total CAR crossed the 17% mark, increasing by 115 bps to 17.1%. 

Dividend

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on August 2, 2018 has declared an interim cash dividend of Rs 1.00 per share 
(10%) for the quarter ended June 30, 2018. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs 1.00 per share (10%) 
already declared and paid for the first quarter ended March 31, 2018.

Credit Ratings

The Bank’s credit ratings were re-affirmed by JCR-VIS at AAA/A-1+ for long term and short term respectively with 
the rating of its subordinated debt also at AA+. The ratings are supported by HBL’s strong momentum in its domestic 
business, improving asset quality, healthy capitalization ratios and strong liquidity profile and reflect the systemic 
importance of the Bank.

Future Outlook

The twin deficits that have plagued Pakistan’s economy had been managed down but have returned in full force. 
The increasing headwinds on the economic front pose major risks with even the most optimistic reports indicating 
a slowdown in GDP growth. A sustained economic recovery will be heavily dependent on real structural reforms, 
diversifying the export base to buildup foreign reserves and a significant widening of the tax net while exercising fiscal 
discipline. Average headline inflation is projected at 6-7% in FY19; nevertheless, the SBP expects healthy growth in 
private sector credit to continue, driven by higher working capital requirements on the back of increasing exports.

Some of the downsides that have affected the half yearly reported results are expected to persist for the medium 
term. However, HBL’s domestic business remains on its growth trajectory and the Bank’s capital is now at its highest in 
several years. This will enable it to pursue its objectives of playing a leading role in financing Pakistan’s development, 
furthering financial inclusion of the country’s population and expanding the digital retail payments infrastructure.  

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

We would like to place on record, our appreciation for the efforts of our regulators and the Government of Pakistan, in 
particular the Ministry of Finance, the State Bank of Pakistan and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, 
for their guidance and support, and for developing and strengthening the banking and financial services sector through 
continuous improvement in the regulatory and governance framework.

On behalf of the Board and the management, we take this opportunity to express our gratitude to our customers 
for entrusting us with their business and to our shareholders for their support and confidence. We assure them that 
we remain committed to maintaining the highest standards and a strong culture of good corporate governance and 
compliance in all our endeavors. We also acknowledge the efforts demonstrated by our employees towards the growth 
of HBL and thank them for their commitment and dedication.

On behalf of the Board

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & Chief Executive Officer
August 2, 2018
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Condensed Interim Consolidated 
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Director
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
 Note June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

(Restated)
ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 242,017,177 246,043,030
Balances with other banks 37,752,236 40,804,269
Lendings to financial institutions 51,797,014 33,900,345
Investments 6 1,355,163,121 1,374,807,643
Advances 7 934,613,810 851,502,420
Operating fixed assets 8 66,253,503 62,792,843
Deferred tax asset 291,354 -                    
Other assets 77,083,684 74,251,149

2,764,971,899 2,684,101,699

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 36,563,340 33,752,219
Borrowings 9 333,499,265 397,802,667
Deposits and other accounts 10 2,117,500,540 1,998,935,057
Subordinated loan 9,992,000 9,994,000
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease -                   -                    
Deferred tax liability -                   971,368
Other liabilities 71,364,969 53,830,894

2,568,920,114 2,495,286,205

NET ASSETS 196,051,785 188,815,494

REPRESENTED BY:

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 14,668,525 14,668,525
Reserves 57,775,747 52,266,420
Unappropriated profit 101,426,904 96,974,143

Total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 173,871,176 163,909,088

Non-controlling interest 3,747,509 3,487,281

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 11 18,433,100 21,419,125
  

196,051,785 188,815,494

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

1
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to April 01 to April 01 to
Note June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017
------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------

Mark-up / return / profit / interest earned 13 75,529,214 72,302,748 38,506,163 37,370,623
Mark-up / return / profit / interest  expensed 14 35,246,628 30,901,318 18,187,080 16,095,204

Net mark-up / return / profit / interest income 40,282,586 41,401,430 20,319,083 21,275,419

(Reversal) / provision against advances 7.2 (243,186) 564,059 (87,004) 420,749
Provision / (reversal) against off-balance sheet obligations 2,671 (50,233) 37,962 (8,251)
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 6.2 261,808 647,522 275,426 427,348
Bad debts written off directly -              -                -              -                

21,293 1,161,348 226,384 839,846
Net mark-up / return / profit / interest income after provisions 40,261,293 40,240,082 20,092,699 20,435,573

Non mark-up / interest income
Fee, commission and brokerage income 9,217,467 10,201,162 4,708,584 5,407,682
Dividend income 495,686 685,752 326,010 507,785
Share of profit of associates and joint venture 1,658,780 1,902,826 594,242 644,083
(Loss) / income from dealing in foreign currencies (1,041,947) 1,315,735 (384,782) 646,101
Gain on sale of securities - net 329,735 1,904,872 229,507 629,459
Unrealized (loss) / gain on held-for-trading securities (53,594) (23,641) (8,006) 20,460
Other income 136,544 447,022 112,591 264,785

Total non mark-up / interest income 10,742,671 16,433,728 5,578,146 8,120,355
51,003,964 56,673,810 25,670,845 28,555,928

Non mark-up / interest expense
Administrative expenses 15 36,190,457 28,353,537 18,466,411 14,589,868
Other provisions / write offs - net 107,823 66,299 14,222 28,774
Other charges 309,220 507 303,116 406
Workers' Welfare Fund 267,883 536,291 128,174 272,290

Total non mark-up / interest expenses 36,875,383 28,956,634 18,911,923 14,891,338
Profit before taxation 14,128,581 27,717,176 6,758,922 13,664,590

Taxation
- Current 5,969,396 10,242,626 3,490,541 5,330,377
- Prior years -              2,072,385 -              2,072,385
- Deferred 31,110 (274,955) (172,050) (335,571)

6,000,506 12,040,056 3,318,491 7,067,191
Profit after taxation 8,128,075 15,677,120 3,440,431 6,597,399

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 7,943,396 15,494,600 3,360,223 6,462,233
Non-controlling interest 184,679 182,520 80,208 135,166

8,128,075 15,677,120 3,440,431 6,597,399

----------------------------(Rupees)----------------------------
Basic and diluted earnings per share 5.42            10.56            2.29            4.41              

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

2

Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director



13HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 2018

Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to April 01 to April 01 to
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017
----------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------

Profit after taxation for the period attributable to: 
Equity holders of the Bank 7,943,396     15,494,600     3,360,223     6,462,233       
Non-controlling interest 184,679        182,520           80,208          135,166           

8,128,075     15,677,120      3,440,431     6,597,399       
Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that may be reclassified to the profit and loss account in subsequent periods
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches, subsidiaries, joint venture
and associates - net, attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 4,659,857 550,828 1,326,368 334,908
Non-controlling interest 75,549 54,168 (17,210) 40,970

4,735,406 604,996 1,309,158 375,878

Share of exchange translation reserve of associates (19,674) 50,246 (84,985) 67,243

Items that are not to be reclassified to the profit and loss account in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net 287,013 -                   287,013 -                   

Share of remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations of associate - net (4,205) (2,542) -                -                   

Comprehensive income transferred to equity 13,126,615 16,329,820 4,951,617 7,040,520

Components of comprehensive income / (loss) not reflected in equity

Items that may be reclassified to the profit and loss account in subsequent periods

Movement in surplus / deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax, attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank (2,997,928) (1,642,884) (1,850,892) (680,795)
Non-controlling interest (38,290) (16,452) (15,344) (20,303)

(3,036,218) (1,659,336) (1,866,236) (701,098)

Share of surplus on revaluation of investments of associates - net of tax 67,544 (790,888) (190,086) (247,815)

Items that are not to be reclassified to the profit and loss account in subsequent periods

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 2,461 10,079 (107) 10,079
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets of associates - net of tax 1,215 105,175 -                -                   

3,676 115,254 (107) 10,079

Movement in surplus / deficit on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 11,202 117,093 1,202 117,093
Transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets -  net of tax (2,461) (10,079) 107 (10,079)

8,741 107,014 1,309 107,014

Total comprehensive income 10,170,358 14,101,864 2,896,497 6,208,700

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 9,948,420 13,881,628 2,848,843 6,052,867
Non-controlling interest 221,938 220,236 47,654 155,833

10,170,358 14,101,864 2,896,497 6,208,700

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Associates, 
Joint 

venture and 
subsidiary

Bank

Balance as at December 31, 2016 14,668,525 10,839,728 582,381 30,072,084 547,115 (156,706) 6,073,812 106,142,374 168,769,313 3,435,710 172,205,023
Effect of retrospective change in accounting policy -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (803,615) (803,615) -               (803,615)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 (restated) 14,668,525 10,839,728 582,381 30,072,084 547,115 (156,706) 6,073,812 105,338,759 167,965,698 3,435,710 171,401,408

Comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the six months ended June 30, 2017 -               -               -               -               -              -               -            15,494,600 15,494,600 182,520 15,677,120

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign

branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates - net -               550,828 -               -               -              -               -            -                  550,828 54,168 604,996
- Share of exchange translation reserve of associates -               50,246 -               -               -              -               -            -                  50,246 -               50,246
-Share of remeasurement loss on defined benefit

obligations of associate - net -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (2,542) (2,542) -               (2,542)
-               601,074 -               -               -              -               -            15,492,058 16,093,132 236,688 16,329,820

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share declared subsequent

to the year ended December 31, 2016 -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (5,133,984) (5,133,984) -               (5,133,984)
1st interim cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (5,133,984) (5,133,984) -               (5,133,984)

-               -               -               -               -              -               -            (10,267,968) (10,267,968) -               (10,267,968)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -               -               -              -               -            22,009 22,009 -               22,009
Acquisition of additional interest in HAHL from minority

shareholder -               -               -               -               -              -               -            -                  -                  (441,933) (441,933)
Transferred to statutory reserves -               -               85,408 1,499,853 -              -               -            (1,585,261) -                  -               -                  
Exchange translation realized on sale of Bank branch to 

Habibsons Bank -               (371,022) -               -               -              -               -            371,022 -                  -               -                  
Capital contribution from statutory funds of associates -               -               -               -               -              -               -            3,072 3,072 -               3,072

Balance as at June 30, 2017 (restated) 14,668,525 11,069,780 667,789 31,571,937 547,115 (156,706) 6,073,812 109,373,691 173,815,943 3,230,465 177,046,408

Comprehensive income for the period
Loss after taxation for the six months ended -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (6,999,389) (6,999,389) 170,543 (6,828,846)

December 31, 2017 (restated)

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign

branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates - net -               3,192,080 -               -               -              -               -            -                  3,192,080 89,821 3,281,901
- Share of exchange translation reserve of associates -               (11,458) -               -               -              -               -            -                  (11,458) -               (11,458)
- Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations - net -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (1,010,912) (1,010,912) (3,548) (1,014,460)
-Share of remeasurement loss on defined benefit

obligations of associate - net -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (129) (129) -               (129)
-               3,180,622 -               -               -              -               -            (8,010,430) (4,829,808) 256,816 (4,572,992)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
2nd interim cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (5,133,984) (5,133,984) -               (5,133,984)

-               -               -               -               -              -               -            (5,133,984) (5,133,984) -               (5,133,984)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -               -               -              -               -            25,529 25,529 -               25,529
Transferred to / (from) statutory reserves -               -               90,918 (793,413) -              -               -            702,495 -                  -               -                  
Exchange translation realised on sale of Bank branch to

Habibsons Bank -               -               -               -               -              -               -            -                  -                  -               -                  
Exchange translation realised on sale of Bank branches -               14,566 -               -               -              -               -            -                  14,566 -               14,566
Capital contribution from statutory funds of associates -               -               -               -               -              -               -            16,842 16,842 -               16,842

Balance as at December 31, 2017 (restated) 14,668,525 14,264,968 758,707 30,778,524 547,115 (156,706) 6,073,812 96,974,143 163,909,088 3,487,281 167,396,369

Comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the six months ended June 30, 2018 -               -               -               -               -              -               -            7,943,396 7,943,396 184,679 8,128,075

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign

branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates - net -               4,659,857 -               -               -              -               -            -                  4,659,857 75,549 4,735,406
- Share of exchange translation reserve of associates -               (19,674) -               -               -              -               -            -                  (19,674) -               (19,674)
- Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net -               -               -               -               -              -               -            287,013 287,013 -               287,013
- Share of remeasurement loss on defined benefit

obligations of associate - net -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (4,205) (4,205) -               (4,205)
-               4,640,183 -               -               -              -               -            8,226,204 12,866,387 260,228 13,126,615

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend - Rs 1.0 per share declared subsequent

to the year ended December 31, 2017 -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (1,466,852) (1,466,852) -               (1,466,852)
1st interim cash dividend - Rs 1.0 per share -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (1,466,852) (1,466,852) -               (1,466,852)

-               -               -               -               -              -               -            (2,933,704) (2,933,704) -               (2,933,704)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -               -               -              -               -            29,768 29,768 -               29,768
Transferred to statutory reserves -               -               112,139 757,005 -              -               -            (869,144) -                  -               -                  
Capital contribution to statutory funds of associate -               -               -               -               -              -               -            (363) (363) -               (363)

Balance as at June 30, 2018 14,668,525 18,905,151 870,846 31,535,529 547,115 (156,706) 6,073,812 101,426,904 173,871,176 3,747,509 177,618,685

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to
June 30, June 30,

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before taxation 14,128,581                 27,717,176                      

Dividend income (495,686)                    (685,752)                         
Share of profit of associates and joint venture (1,658,780)                 (1,902,826)                     

(2,154,466)                 (2,588,578)                     
11,974,115                  25,128,598                     

Adjustment for:
Depreciation 1,765,310                   1,659,196                       
Amortisation 337,810                      268,661                          
(Reversal) / provision against advances (243,186)                    564,059                          
Provision / (reversal) against off-balance sheet obligations 2,671                          (50,233)                           
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 261,808                      647,522                          
Other provisions / write offs - net 107,823                      66,299                            
Unrealized loss on held-for-trading securities 53,594                        23,641                            
Exchange gain on Goodwill (133,737)                     (94,592)                           
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net (17,675)                       (19,763)                           
Workers' Welfare Fund 267,883                     536,291                          

2,402,301                  3,601,081                       
14,376,416                 28,729,679                    

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets 
Lendings to financial institutions (17,896,669)               (16,589,182)                   
Net investments in held-for-trading securities (128,165,655)             (77,177,659)                    
Advances (82,868,204)              (83,104,955)                   
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 3,011,667                   (5,827,631)                      

(225,918,861)             (182,699,427)                 
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities  
Bills payable 2,811,121                    (1,505,949)                     
Borrowings (64,303,402)              55,179,560                     
Deposits and other accounts 118,565,483              116,612,997                   
Other liabilities 16,839,952                8,703,282                      

73,913,154                 178,989,890                  
(137,629,291)              25,020,142                    

Income tax paid (11,787,587)                (16,803,105)                   
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities (149,416,878)             8,217,037                       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net investments in available-for-sale securities 97,821,374                 (13,092,997)                   
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 47,009,200                11,060,590                     
Net investments in associates (50,061)                      (524,537)                         
Dividend income received 344,778                     706,192                          
Fixed capital expenditure (5,328,679)                 (15,338,825)                   
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 51,770                        45,014                            
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches, subsidiaries, joint venture and associates - net 4,640,183                  601,076                          
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 144,488,565              (16,543,487)                   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Effect of translation of net investment by non-controlling interest in subsidiary 75,549                        54,168                            
Repayment of subordinated loan (2,000)                        (2,000)                             
Dividend paid (2,223,122)                  (6,809,851)                     
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,149,573)                 (6,757,683)                     

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period (7,077,886)                 (15,084,133)                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 277,494,750              282,040,075                  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 9,352,549                  2,357,303                       

286,847,299              284,397,378                  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 279,769,413              269,313,245                  

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

(Rupees in '000)
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Cash Flow Statement (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director



HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 201816

HABIB BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

-

-

-
-

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Change in accounting policies

3.1.1

The effect of this change in accounting policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, is as follows:

As at June As at December As at December 
Impact on Statement of Financial Position 30, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2016

---------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------
Decrease in unappropriated profit             (129,118)             (131,799)            (803,615)

              129,118               131,799              803,615 

For the six months ended
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

(Rupees in '000)
Impact on Profit and Loss account -                     -                     
Impact on Statement of Comprehensive Income -                     -                     

The disclosures made in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been limited based on the format prescribed
by the SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 2 dated May 12, 2004 and IAS 34. These condensed interim consolidated financial statements
do not include all the disclosures required for annual consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Consequently, the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets. The Bank's previous
accounting policy (as described in Note 4.5.1 of the annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017), in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, required that a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular asset was to be
adjusted against the total balance in the surplus account or, if no surplus existed, was to be charged to the profit and loss account as an
impairment of the asset. The Companies Act, 2017 removed the specific provisions allowing the above treatment. A deficit arising on
revaluation of a particular asset is now to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS, which requires that such deficit can not be adjusted 
against surplus for any other asset, but is to be taken to the profit and loss account as an impairment. 

Habib Bank Limited (the Bank) is incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking related services in Pakistan and
overseas. The registered office is at Habib Bank Tower, 9th Floor, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad and its principal office is at Habib
Bank Plaza, I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The Bank's shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Bank operates 1,703
(December 31, 2017: 1,703) branches inside Pakistan including 47 (December 31, 2017: 47) Islamic Banking Branches and 48 (December
31, 2017: 48) branches outside the country including in the Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ). The Aga Khan Fund for Economic
Development (AKFED), S.A. is the parent company of the Bank and its registered office is in Geneva, Switzerland.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan for
interim financial reporting comprise of:

Habib Finance International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank, has filed for voluntary liquidation and is in the process of
completing the required formalities in this regard.

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under
the Companies Act, 2017;
Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and
Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP
and the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 except as disclosed in
note 3.1.

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as directed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular No. 23 dated Oct 4, 2017, the financial reporting requirements of the
Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statement (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.1.2

4 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6 INVESTMENTS Note
Held by Given as Total Held by Given as Total

Investments by type Group collateral Group collateral

Held-for-trading (HFT)

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 191,327,516 115,414 191,442,930 48,402,667 -                     48,402,667
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 5,206,539 -                 5,206,539 17,918,321 -                     17,918,321
- Sukuks -                 -                 -                 1,999,062 -                     1,999,062

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
- Listed companies 176,874 -                 176,874 274,651 -                     274,651

Overseas Government securities 125,385 -                 125,385 149,311 -                     149,311

196,836,314 115,414 196,951,728 68,744,012 -                     68,744,012

Held-to-maturity (HTM) 6.1

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 112,402 -                 112,402 90,938 -                     90,938
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 185,265,077 -                 185,265,077 229,759,743 -                     229,759,743
- Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds 122,775 -                 122,775 1,177,868 -                     1,177,868

Debentures and corporate debt instruments 
- Listed 11,449,007 -                 11,449,007 9,551,953 -                     9,551,953
- Unlisted 22,659,178 -                 22,659,178 21,326,345 -                     21,326,345

Overseas Government securities 12,112,619 -                 12,112,619 16,823,411 -                     16,823,411

231,721,058 -                 231,721,058 278,730,258 -                     278,730,258
Available-for-sale (AFS)

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 398,368,399 80,923,530 479,291,929 331,139,959 131,244,262 462,384,221
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 143,683,119 108,659,483 252,342,602 238,503,885 134,373,604 372,877,489
- Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds 2,688,899 -                 2,688,899 2,257,828 -                     2,257,828
- Sukuks 78,748,380 -                 78,748,380 83,205,706 -                     83,205,706

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
- Listed companies 16,636,844 -                 16,636,844 19,661,232 -                     19,661,232
- Unlisted companies 3,356,164 -                 3,356,164 2,711,847 -                     2,711,847

Debentures and corporate debt instruments 
- Listed 35,913,746 12,612,665 48,526,411 23,898,704 15,378,666 39,277,370
- Unlisted 6.3 11,550,994 -                 11,550,994 10,771,917 -                     10,771,917

Overseas Government securities 10,649,564 -                 10,649,564 8,891,515 -                     8,891,515
National Investment Trust units 11,113 -                 11,113 11,113 -                     11,113
Real Estate Investment Trust units 55,000 -                 55,000 154,000 -                     154,000
Preference shares 97,500 -                 97,500 97,500 -                     97,500

701,759,722 202,195,678 903,955,400 721,305,206 280,996,532 1,002,301,738

Investment in associates and joint venture 29,285,085 -                 29,285,085 27,169,019 -                     27,169,019

1,159,602,179 202,311,092 1,361,913,271 1,095,948,495 280,996,532 1,376,945,027
Provision for diminution in the value of 

investments 6.2 (1,764,859) -                 (1,764,859) (1,503,051) -                     (1,503,051)

1,157,837,320 202,311,092 1,360,148,412 1,094,445,444 280,996,532 1,375,441,976

Deficit on revaluation of held-for-trading securities (53,560) (34) (53,594) (73,353) -                     (73,353)

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of 
available-for-sale securities (4,111,233) (1,113,177) (5,224,410) (974,143) 224,364 (749,779)

Surplus  on revaluation of investments 
of associates 292,713 -                 292,713 188,799 -                     188,799

Total investments (net of provision) 1,153,965,240 201,197,881 1,355,163,121 1,093,586,747 281,220,896 1,374,807,643

December 31, 2017 (Audited)June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

11.2

As per the accounting policy of the Bank (as described in Note 4.4 of the annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017), the provision against advances of overseas branches is made as per the requirement of the respective regulatory
regimes. During the current period, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, became applicable for certain overseas
branches of the Bank. Accordingly, in respect of such branches, the Bank has changed its accounting policy and has followed the
requirements of IFRS 9, while determining the provisioning requirements against advances. Under this standard, provision against loans
and advances is determined under expected credit loss model. Previously, this was determined under the incurred loss model.

The adoption of this standard by certain overseas branches resulted in additional provisioning requirement of Rs 18.313 million as at June
30, 2018. This includes Rs 22.280 million in respect of prior year which has been incorporated in the current period and opening balance
of retained earnings has not been adjusted as the amount involved is not considered material.

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements are the same
as that applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------------------------------
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

6.1

6.2 Particulars of provision held against diminution in the value of investments (Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017

Opening balance 1,503,051       866,152            

Charge for the period / year 600,389         1,289,086        
Reversal for the period / year (3,755)             (203,605)          
Reversed on disposal during the period / year (334,826)        (619,614)           
Net (reversal) / charge 261,808         465,867           

Recoveries against written off investments -                 171,032             

Closing balance 1,764,859       1,503,051         

6.3

6.4

Diamond Trust Bank Kenya Limited

Himalayan Bank Limited, Nepal

Kyrgyz Investment and Credit Bank, Kyrgyz Republic

Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited

Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited

HBL Cash fund

HBL Energy Fund

HBL Equity Fund

HBL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan

HBL Government Securities Fund
HBL Income Fund

HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

HBL Islamic Equity Fund

HBL Islamic Income Fund
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Debt Sub Fund

HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Equity Sub Fund

HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Money Market Sub Fund

HBL Islamic Stock Fund
HBL Money Market Fund

HBL Multi Asset Fund

HBL Pension Fund - Debt Sub Fund

HBL Pension Fund - Equity Sub Fund

HBL Pension Fund - Money Market Sub Fund

HBL Stock Fund

PICIC Investment Fund

The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity amounted to Rs 231,327.781 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 280,806.402 
million) as at June 30, 2018.

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Based on the financial
  statements as at

March 31, 2018

April 13, 2018

This includes privately placed TFCs of Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited (PIACL) amounting to Rs 4,857.022 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs 6,071.278 million) which is guaranteed by the Government of Pakistan and is subject to a relaxation given by the
SBP from Regulation-8 of the Prudential Regulations. However, mark-up income has been suspended on this amount and is only
recognised when received.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements include the results of the following associates and joint venture for the
periods listed:

8
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7 ADVANCES Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.
- In Pakistan 721,137,369 642,772,680
- Outside Pakistan 118,039,634 124,963,052

839,177,003 767,735,732

Net investment in finance lease - in Pakistan 17,688,671 17,127,661

Islamic financing and related assets 20.1.2 94,371,958 84,408,003

Bills discounted and purchased
- Payable in Pakistan 21,251,880 16,751,077
- Payable outside Pakistan 31,787,960 34,985,466

53,039,840 51,736,543
Advances - gross 1,004,277,472 921,007,939

Provision against advances
- Specific (66,363,004) (66,417,176)
- General (3,300,658) (3,088,343)

(69,663,662) (69,505,519)
Advances - net of provision 934,613,810 851,502,420

7.1

Category of  Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total
classification

Other assets especially 
mentioned 1,264,926 -              1,264,926 -              -              -               1,264,926 -                           1,264,926

Substandard 2,619,259 1,750,606 4,369,865 1,202,610 210,475 1,413,085 1,416,649 1,540,131 2,956,780
Doubtful 1,288,725 660,506 1,949,231 642,928 313,607 956,535 645,797 346,899 992,696
Loss 42,448,863 25,962,339 68,411,202 41,382,863 22,610,521 63,993,384 1,066,000 3,351,818 4,417,818

47,621,773 28,373,451 75,995,224 43,228,401 23,134,603 66,363,004 4,393,372 5,238,848 9,632,220

Category of 
classification Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total

Other assets especially 
mentioned 1,069,200 32,434 1,101,634 -               -               -                1,069,200 32,434 1,101,634

Substandard 2,891,184 794,075 3,685,259 1,164,228 166,073 1,330,301 1,726,956 628,002 2,354,958
Doubtful 1,560,805 1,022,442 2,583,247 778,980 417,505 1,196,485 781,825 604,937 1,386,762
Loss 44,829,967 23,645,285 68,475,252 43,694,869 20,195,521 63,890,390 1,135,098 3,449,764 4,584,862

50,351,156 25,494,236 75,845,392 45,638,077 20,779,099 66,417,176 4,713,079 4,715,137 9,428,216

7.2 Particulars of provision against advances
Note

Specific General Total Specific General Total

Opening balance 66,417,187 3,088,341  69,505,528 65,160,197  3,623,544                 68,783,741 
Exchange  adjustment 1,901,633   141,261       2,042,894 1,417,860    102,173                      1,520,033 

Charge for the period / year 1,726,756 178,371      1,905,127 5,294,493 337,509                     5,632,002 
Reversal for the period / year (2,040,998) (107,315)     (2,148,313) (4,711,205) (970,351)                    (5,681,556) 
Net (reversal) / charge against advances (314,242) 71,056 (243,186) 583,288 (632,842) (49,554) 
Charged off during the period / year 7.4 (276,593) -              (276,593) (400,719)      -                             (400,719) 
Written off during the period / year (1,596,850) -              (1,596,850) (352,587)      -                             (352,587) 
Transfer out on sale of Kenya business - - - (550,276) (21,002) (571,278) 
Recoveries against write off 231,869 - 231,869 512,684 - 512,684 
Other movements - -              - 46,729 16,470                       63,199 
Closing balance 66,363,004 3,300,658 69,663,662 66,417,176 3,088,343 69,505,519 

7.2

(Rupees in '000)

Advances include Rs 75,995.224 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 75,845.392 million) which have been placed under non-performing
status as detailed below:

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)
Non-performing advances Provision required and held Net non-performing advances

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) December 31, 2017 (Audited)

----------------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)----------------------------------------------------

December 31, 2017 (Audited)
Non-performing advances Provision required and held Net non-performing advances

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7.3

7.4

7.5 Particulars of advances to directors, associated companies, etc.

Balance at the  
beginning of 

the period

Loans granted 
/ transferred 
in during the 

period

Repayments / 
transferred out 

during the 
period

Balance at the 
end of the 

period

Maximum total 
amount of 

advances including 
temporary 
advances 

outstanding**

Limit sanctioned 
during the period

Debts due by Directors or Executives of the Group or any of
them either severally or jointly with any other persons:
- in respect of Directors -              -               -                -              -                     -                     
- in respect of Executives* (other than Key 

Management Personnel) 2,819,039 1,236,536 (1,675,748) 2,379,827 2,494,910 889,074
- in respect of Key Management Personnel 145,569 91,600 (98,757) 138,412 217,346 55,607

Debts due by companies or firms in which the Directors of
the Group are interested as directors, partners, advisors 
or in the case of private companies as members 17,102,322 111,885,849 (107,015,609) 21,972,562 23,806,516 -                     

*  These represent advances given by the Group to its Executives as per their terms of employment.
** This is the maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the period.

Balance at the  
beginning of 

the year

Loans granted 
/ transferred 
in during the 

year 

Repayments / 
transferred out 
during the year

Balance at the 
end of the 

year

Maximum total 
amount of 

advances including 
temporary 
advances 

outstanding**

Limit sanctioned 
during the year

Debts due by Directors or Executives of the Group  or any of
them either severally or jointly with any other persons:
- in respect of Directors -                 -                 -                   -                 -                         -                         
- in respect of Executives* (other than

Key Management Personnel) 2,876,769 771,450 (829,180) 2,819,039 3,099,210 771,450
- in respect of Key Management Personnel 38,221 180,966 (73,618) 145,569 209,438 168,890

Debts due by companies or firms in which the Directors of 
the Group are interested as directors, partners, advisors
or in the case of private companies as members 10,404,154 170,929,393 (164,231,225) 17,102,322 26,606,439 13,766,655

*  These represent advances given by the Group to its Executives as per their terms of employment.
** This is the maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year.

8 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS (Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017

Capital work-in-progress 8.1 19,324,803   17,061,851      
Tangible fixed assets 40,829,564   40,036,539    
Intangible assets 6,099,136     5,694,453      

66,253,503   62,792,843    

8.1 This includes Rs 15,803.735 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 14,440.034 million) on account of a new office building in Karachi.

 -----------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------- 

(Rupees in '000)

 -----------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------- 

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

General provision represents provision amounting to Rs 1,499.653 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 1,405.701 million) against consumer
finance portfolio and Rs 184.255 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 138.195 million) against advances to microenterprises as required by the
Prudential Regulations. General provision also includes Rs 1,616.750 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 1,544.447 million) pertaining to
overseas locations to meet the requirements of the regulatory authorities of the respective countries in which the Group operates.

These represent non-performing advances for agriculture finance which have been classified as loss, are fully provided and are in default
for more than 3 years. These non-performing advances have been charged off by extinguishing them against the provision held in
accordance with the SBP's Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing. This charge off does not, in any way, prejudice the Bank's
right of recovery from these customers. 

December 31, 2017 (Audited)
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited)
8.2 Additions to operating fixed assets For the six months ended

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

The following additions have been made to operating fixed assets during the period:

Capital work-in-progress 2,262,952      13,859,434      

Tangible fixed assets
Land 63,799            -                    
Building 140,014          190,879            
Machinery 4,782              -                    
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 1,663,421       1,068,155         
Leasehold Improvements 421,489          93,390              
Vehicles 122,644          30,319              

2,416,149       1,382,743         
Intangible assets
 Computer software 605,898         192,325            
 Management Rights -                 2,367,577         
 Goodwill -                 (2,367,577)       

605,898         192,325            
5,284,999      15,434,502      

8.3 Disposal of operating fixed assets

The cost of operating fixed assets disposed off during the period is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 429,342         124,900            
Leasehold Improvements 150,480         18,884              
Vehicles 22,237            50,198              

602,059         193,982            

(Unaudited) (Audited)
9 BORROWINGS Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017
Secured (Rupees in '000)
Borrowings from the SBP under

- Export refinance scheme 25,696,174    26,343,510      
- Long term financing facility 10,516,512     9,852,123         
- Refinance facility for modernization of SMEs 26,167            9,500                

36,238,853    36,205,133      
Repurchase agreement borrowings 200,177,673   279,802,790    

236,416,526  316,007,923    
Unsecured

- Call money borrowings 24,790,000    11,385,000      
- Overdrawn nostro accounts 681,821          1,829,975         
- Borrowings of overseas branches and subsidiaries 28,058,876    28,375,417       
- Other long term borrowings 9.1 43,552,042    40,204,352     

97,082,739    81,794,744      
333,499,265  397,802,667    

9.1 This includes the following:

9.1.1

9.1.2

A loan from the International Finance Corporation amounting to US$ 150 million (December 31, 2017: US$ 150 million). The principal
amount is payable in six equal half yearly installments from June 2022 to December 2024. Interest at LIBOR+5% is payable bi-annually
from June 2015.

A loan from the China Development Bank amounting to US$ 192 million (December 31, 2017: US$ 196 million). The principal amount is
payable in six installments from December 2017 to June 2020. Interest at LIBOR+2.45% is payable semi annually commencing from June
15, 2017.

(Rupees in '000)
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

9.1.3

10 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
Customers (Rupees in '000)
Current accounts - non-remunerative 784,377,765 727,425,393
Savings accounts 896,848,699 876,338,346
Fixed deposits 332,543,509 328,867,254

2,013,769,973 1,932,630,993
Financial institutions
Current accounts - non-remunerative 6,226,924 5,778,651
Savings accounts 94,584,066 59,294,770
Fixed deposits 2,919,577 1,230,643

103,730,567 66,304,064
2,117,500,540 1,998,935,057

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31,

11 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax 2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of assets - net of tax, on (Restated)
- Operating fixed assets, attributable to

- Equity holders 21,514,944     21,540,565      
- Non-controlling interest 3,086              3,387                

11.1 21,518,030     21,543,952      
- Investments, attributable to

- Equity holders (3,333,317)     (402,933)          
- Non-controlling interest (43,004)          (4,714)               

11.2 (3,376,321)     (407,647)          
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 11.3 291,391          282,820           
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 18,433,100    21,419,125       

11.1 Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 

Surplus as at the beginning of the period / year 22,563,834    12,641,903      
Surplus recognised during the period / year -                 9,979,303        
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 3,227              15,504              
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental 

depreciation charged during the period / year - net of deferred tax (29,598)          (47,370)             
Related deferred tax liability on incremental depreciation charged during the 

period / year (15,937)           (25,506)            
22,521,526     22,563,834      

Less: related deferred tax liability on
- Revaluation as at the beginning of the period / year 1,155,718        708,765            
- Revaluation recognized during the period / year -                 467,033           
- Amount transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 766                 5,426                
- Incremental depreciation charged during the period / year (15,937)           (25,506)            

1,140,547       1,155,718          

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets of associates 149,306          147,063            
Related deferred tax liability (12,255)           (11,227)              

137,051          135,836            
21,518,030     21,543,952      

A loan from Allied Bank Limited amounting to Rs 2 billion (December 31, 2017: Rs 2 billion).The principal amount is payable in ten equal
half yearly installments starting from June 2020 to December 2024. Interest at 6 months KIBOR+0.75% is payable bi-annually
commencing from June 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
11.2 Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments (Rupees in '000)

Market Treasury Bills (145,015)         (81,386)             
Pakistan Investment Bonds (3,063,836)    569,276            
Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds (119,127)          496                   
Sukuks (62,390)          485,521            
Listed equity securities (1,565,258)     (1,794,580)       
National Investment Trust units 38,534           36,190              
Real Estate Investment Trust units 9,500              -                    
Overseas Government securities (27,023)          (7,641)               
Other debt instruments (289,795)        42,345              

(5,224,410)     (749,779)           
Related tax asset 1,657,826       219,413            

(3,566,584)     (530,366)          
Surplus on revaluation of investments of associates 292,713          188,799            
Related deferred tax liability (102,450)        (66,080)            

190,263          122,719             
(3,376,321)     (407,647)          

11.3 Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Surplus as at the beginning of the period / year 283,667         690,381            
Surplus recognised / (reversed) during the period / year 11,249            (390,952)          
Transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets during the period / year (3,227)             (15,504)             
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental 

depreciation charged during the period / year - net of deferred tax (170)                (168)                  
Related deferred tax liability on incremental depreciation charged

 during the period / year (91)                  (90)                    
291,428          283,667            

Less: related deferred tax liability on
- Revaluation as at the beginning of the period / year 847                 6,203                
- Revaluation recognised during the period / year 47                   160                    
- Amount transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets during 

the period / year (766)                (5,426)               
- Incremental depreciation charged during the period / year (91)                  (90)                    

37                   847                    
291,391          282,820           

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Direct credit substitutes - financial guarantees

Guarantees in favour of
- Government 337,292          273,782            
- Financial institutions 998,410         441,000           
- Others 48,933,821    38,462,882     

50,269,523    39,177,664      
12.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities

Guarantees in favour of
- Government 462,552         269,851            
- Financial institutions 73,616            1,713,959         
- Others 112,674,604  123,407,833    

113,210,772   125,391,643    
12.3 Trade-related contingent liabilities

Letters of credit in favour of
- Government 29,676,239    49,835,960     
- Financial institutions 4,531,273       5,340,244        
- Others 93,408,899    81,773,117        

127,616,411   136,949,321    
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
12.4 Other contingencies (Rupees in '000)

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 28,983,613    28,370,682      

12.4.1

12.4.2

12.5 Commitments to extend credit

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
12.6 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts (Rupees in '000)

Purchase 164,039,069  142,571,667     
Sale 92,281,128     84,353,498     

12.7 Commitments in respect of forward Government Securities transactions

Purchase 29,357,272     20,243,788      
Sale 87,375,162     -                    

12.8 Commitments in respect of derivatives

Foreign currency options
Purchase 420,698         -                    
Sale 420,698         -                    

Cross currency swaps
Purchase 2,866,143      1,633,987         
Sale 3,151,761        1,707,050         

Interest rate swaps 
Purchase -                 -                    
Sale 10,029,531     10,315,539       

12.9 Commitments for capital expenditure 3,489,145      5,026,435        

12.10

13 MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EARNED
June 30, June 30,

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

On advances 33,884,360   27,837,837      
On investments in
 - Held-for-trading securities 3,582,715       2,904,364        
 - Held-to-maturity securities 9,312,617       7,744,553        
 - Available-for-sale securities 27,017,355     32,794,762      

39,912,687    43,443,679      
On deposits with financial institutions 475,788          563,121            
On lendings to financial institutions 1,256,379       458,111             

75,529,214     72,302,748      

(Unaudited)
For the six months ended

The Group makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but none of these commitments are irrevocable and
do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

The matter relating to the Bank's New York Branch has been disclosed in Note 29 to the annual consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2017. There is no further update on the same.

These mainly represent counter claims by borrowers for damages, claims filed by former employees of the Group and other relief and
other claims relating to banking transactions. Based on legal advice and / or internal assessments, management is confident that the
matters will be decided in the favour and the possibility of any adverse outcome is remote. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

The income tax returns of the Bank have been submitted upto and including the accounting year 2016. The tax authorities have
concluded the audit of the returns under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 upto accounting year 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

14 MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EXPENSED (Rupees in '000)

On
- Deposits 25,409,375    21,788,924      
- Securities sold under repurchase agreement borrowings 6,610,182       7,270,523         
- Other short-term borrowings 1,573,520       899,462           
- Long-term borrowings 1,653,551       942,409           

35,246,628    30,901,318      

15

16 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Federal Government securities The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined on the basis of rates / prices sourced from Reuters.
Investment in debt securities denominated in Rupees are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP). Investments in debt securities denominated in other currencies are valued on the
basis of rates taken from Bloomberg / Reuters.

The fair values of investments in units of mutual funds are determined based on their net asset values as published at
the close of each business day.

The Group enters into derivatives contracts with various counterparties. Derivatives that are valued using valuation
techniques with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using
present value calculations.

For the six months ended

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term advances, other assets and other liabilities can not be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for
similar instruments. 

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since they are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer advances, deposits and certain long term borrowings,
are frequently repriced.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

The fair values of traded investments are based on quoted market prices. The fair values of unquoted equity investments, other than
investments in associates and joint ventures, are estimated using the break-up value of the investee company.

Further to the disclosure on pension related matters as explained in detail in note 44.2 to the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017, decision on the review petition was announced on April 3, 2018. Consequently, the
Group has taken a charge of Rs 1,851.929 million representing the increase in the present value of the pension scheme related
defined benefit obligations. The amount has been estimated based on actuarial valuations.

In accordance with the Honorable Supreme Order the payments to eligible persons are prospectively applied from the date of
judgment i.e. February 13, 2018.

Operating fixed assets and non-
banking assets acquired in 
satisfaction of claims

Land, buildings and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on a periodic basis using
professional valuers. The valuation is based on their assessment of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes
in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative
disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

Derivatives

Debentures and corporate debt 
instruments

Units of mutual funds

Overseas Government securities The fair values of Overseas Government securities are determined on the basis of rates taken from Bloomberg /
Reuters.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------

Items carried at Fair Value

Financial assets and liabilities
- Fully paid-up ordinary shares 13,865,276 -                     -                     13,865,276
- Real Estate Investment Trust units 64,500 -                     -                     64,500
- Federal Government securities -                     1,006,284,370 -                     1,006,284,370
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                     54,205,956 -                     54,205,956
- Overseas Government securities -                     10,741,105 -                     10,741,105
- National Investment Trust units -                     49,647 -                     49,647

- Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts -                     4,012,324 -                     4,012,324
- Unrealised gain on derivative instruments -                     73,341 -                     73,341
- Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts -                     2,658,707 -                     2,658,707
- Unrealised loss on derivative instruments -                     43,039 -                     43,039

Non-financial assets
- Operating fixed assets -                     -                     32,638,314 32,638,314
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims -                     -                     1,854,636 1,854,636

Items for which Fair Value is disclosed
- Federal Government securities -                     182,759,855 -                     182,759,855
- Overseas Government securities -                     14,363,009 -                     14,363,009
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                     34,204,917 -                     34,204,917

13,929,776 1,309,396,270 34,492,950 1,357,818,996

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------

Items carried at Fair Value

Financial assets and liabilities
- Fully paid-up ordinary shares 17,004,855 -                        -                        17,004,855
- Real Estate Investment Trust units 154,000 -                        -                        154,000
- Federal Government securities -                        989,980,872 -                        989,980,872
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                        40,285,987 -                        40,285,987
- Overseas Government securities -                        9,017,220 -                        9,017,220
- National Investment Trust units -                        47,303 -                        47,303

- Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts -                        4,086,999 -                        4,086,999
- Unrealised gain on derivative instruments -                        102,616 -                        102,616
- Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts -                        891,964 -                        891,964
- Unrealised loss on derivative instruments -                        50,418 -                        50,418

Non-financial assets
- Operating fixed assets -                        -                        32,478,149 32,478,149
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims -                        -                        1,967,665 1,967,665

Items for which Fair Value is disclosed
- Federal Government securities -                        232,971,770 -                        232,971,770
- Overseas Government securities -                        16,956,040 -                        16,956,040
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                        30,878,592 -                        30,878,592

17,158,855 1,325,269,781 34,445,814 1,376,874,450

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of those of the assets and liabilities that are recognised or
disclosed at fair value in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements:
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17 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in million) ------------------------------------------------

Net mark-up income - external (4,607)       10,662       30,616        2,982        (92)            723            40,284      

Inter-segment revenue / (expense) - net 30,718       (7,327)       (25,565)      -            -            2,174         -            -            -            -             -            -            -            
Non-funded income 6,435        1,713         808            1,349         448           (11)             10,742       

Total income 32,546      5,048        5,859          4,331         356            2,886        51,026       

Total expenses including provision 13,549       (464)          549             9,509        200            13,554       36,897      -            -            -             -            -            -            
Inter-segment administrative cost 8,492        1,238         239             890           -            (10,859)     -            

Total expenses including provision 22,041       774            788             10,399      200            2,695         36,897      

Profit / (loss) before tax 10,505       4,274         5,071          (6,068)       156            191            14,129       

Segment return on assets % 0.74% 0.98% 0.47% -2.27% 3.85% 0.09% -            -            -            -             -            -            -            
Segment cost of funds % 2.77% 5.20% 5.21% 1.43% 5.01% 1.09% -            

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in million) ------------------------------------------------

Segment assets (gross of provision) 527,710     564,587    1,273,331   310,032    3,648        158,001     2,837,309 -            -            -             -            -            -            
Segment non-performing advances 7,801         39,377       -             28,373      -            444           75,995       -            -            -             -            -            -            
Segment provision held (including 
  general provision) 6,837        38,217       1,136          25,060      -            1,087         72,337       -            -            -             -            -            -            
Inter-segment assets / (liabilities) 1,156,219  (195,181)    (1,046,599) 28,453      (564)          57,672       -            -            -            -             -            -            -            
Segment liabilities and equity 1,677,092  331,189     225,596     313,425    3,084        214,586    2,764,972 

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in million) ------------------------------------------------

Net mark-up income - external (3,899)         9,001           30,958         4,653          (103)             791              41,401         

Inter-segment revenue / (expense) - net 27,716         (6,019)         (23,617)         -              -              1,920           -              

Non-funded income 6,224          1,404          2,637            2,648          472              3,049          16,434        

Total income 30,041        4,386          9,978            7,301           369              5,760           57,835        

Total expenses including provision 12,646        (213)             1,073            6,747           213              9,652          30,118         

Inter-segment administrative cost 6,066          885              172                635              -              (7,758)         -              

Total expenses including provision 18,712         672              1,245            7,382           213              1,894           30,118         

Profit / (loss) before tax 11,329         3,714           8,733            (81)               156              3,866          27,717         

Segment return on assets % 0.88% 1.06% 0.80% -0.02% 5.14% 1.68% -              

Segment cost of funds % 2.65% 4.83% 5.04% 1.09% 5.13% 0.52% -              

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in million) ------------------------------------------------

Segment assets (gross of provision) 510,273      477,658      1,295,184    334,731      3,740          134,350      2,755,936   

Segment non-performing advances 7,592           42,465        -                25,494        -              294              75,845        

Segment provision held (including 
general provision) 6,933          40,516        872               22,606        -              907              71,834        

Inter-segment assets / (liabilities) 1,062,311    (130,699)    (978,849)     21,101         (564)            26,700        -              

Segment liabilities and equity 1,565,651    306,443     315,463       333,226      3,176           160,143      2,684,102  

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Treasury
International 

banking 
Asset 

Management
Head Office  

/ Others
Total

Treasury
Asset 

Management
Head Office  

/ Others
Total

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

International 
banking 

Branch 
banking

Corporate 
banking

Branch 
banking

Corporate 
banking

Treasury
International 

banking 
Asset 

Management

Total

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

For the six months ended June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

Corporate 
banking

Treasury
International 

banking 
Asset 

Management

Branch 
banking

Corporate 
banking

Head Office  
/ Others

Total
Head Office  

/ Others

Branch 
banking
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Associates
Joint 

Venture

Other 
related 
parties

 ----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------
Statement of financial position
Deposits 172,658 56,243 10,040,240 2,454,802 -              781,288
Maximum deposits during the period 232,076 90,313 11,821,567 11,257,081 -              2,896,068
Borrowings -              -               1,826,938 2,186,950 1,214,972 -              
Investments -              -               -              26,513,876 3,063,922 6,030,725
Provision for diminution in the value of investments -              -               -              -              -              (18,980)
Nostro balances -              -               244,010 10,353 6,562 -              
Advances -              138,412 3,298,158 1,500,000 -              24,315,687
Provision against advances -              -               -              -              -              (1,726,437)
Mark-up receivable -              363 28,728 13,213 -              305,187
Other receivable -              -               5,412 254,506 -              26,550
Mark-up payable 1,023 74 172,545 12,413 7,673 2,324
Other payable -              -               22,126 25,491 -              2,443,935

-              -               -              
Contingencies and Commitments
Letters of credit -              -               472,826 -              -              10,913,419
Letters of guarantee -              -               219,555 -              -              705,938
Forward purchase of government securities -              -               14,131,224 -              -              11,407,338
Forward sale of government securities -              -               -              -              -              2,154,567
Interest rate swaps -              -               1,596,197 1,500,000 -              -              

Others
Securities held as custodian -              8,395 17,938,710 26,718,750 -              17,229,950

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Associates
Joint 

Venture

Other 
related 
parties

 ----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------
Profit and Loss Account
Mark-up income -              7,206 147,959 119,880 -              659,965
Fee and commission income -              -               104 1,287,852 -              11,541
Share of profit -              -               -              1,402,655 256,125 -              
Dividend Income -              -               -              -              -              36,162
Mark-up expense 3,454 165 269,134 194,416 12,778 24,181
Salaries and allowances -              711,839 -              -              -              -              
Contribution to provident and benevolent fund -              8,916 -              -              -              -              
Net charge for defined benefit / contribution plans -              -               -              -              -              2,237,482
Non-Executive Directors' fees 28,800 -               -              -              -              -              
Other loss -              -               (7,137) (1,996) -              -              
Other expenses -              -               23,761 1 -              456,309
Insurance premium expense -              -               -              629,426 -              -              

The Group has relationships with various related parties, including its directors, members of the key management personnel of the
Group, Group entities, associated undertakings, joint venture company and employee benefit schemes of the Group.

Transactions with the related parties, other than those under terms of employment, are executed on an arm's length basis i.e. do not
involve more than normal risk and are substantially on the same terms, including mark-up rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties.

Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement and other benefit schemes are made in accordance with the actuarial
valuations / terms of the schemes.

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Details of transactions and balances with related parties as at the period / year end, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Associates
Joint 

Venture

Other 
related 
parties

 ----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------
Others
Purchase of government securities -              8,297 83,917,802 -              -              35,962,913
Sale of government securities -              16,487 90,624,221 26,082,649 -              39,871,938
Insurance claims -              -               -              36,436 -              -              

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Associates
Joint 

Venture

Other 
related 
parties

 ----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------
Statement of financial position
Deposits 127,426 37,694 22,190,433 9,245,055 22,702 1,501,398
Maximum deposits during the year 165,193 50,047 24,219,104 13,758,153 63,856 2,229,057
Borrowings -                -                  1,141,977 3,312,516 1,104,172 -                
Investments -                -                  -                24,618,037 2,739,781 5,291,967
Provision for diminution in the value  of investments -                -                  -                -                -                (68,800)
Nostro balances -                -                  169,804 -                -                -                
Advances -                145,569 3,147,907 3,962,169 -                16,536,672
Provision against advances -                -                  -                -                -                (1,726,437)
Mark-up receivable -                247 18,843 63,280 -                211,963
Other receivable -                -                  4,243 418,657 -                -                
Mark-up payable 120 243 95,621 45,720 1,195 4,951
Other payable -                -                  13,722 380,935 -                1,459,635

Contingencies and Commitments
Letters of credit -                -                  366,972 -                -                13,447,606
Letters of guarantee -                -                  198,059 712,509 -                -                
Forward purchase of government securities -                -                  13,232,566 -                -                2,104,644
Interest rate swaps -                -                  1,743,539 1,500,000 -                -                

Others
Securities held as custodian -                8,220 16,223,810 28,200,745 -                8,478,905

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Associates
Joint 

Venture

Other 
related 
parties

 ----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------
Profit and Loss Account
Mark-up income -                3,634 126,452 43,227 -                501,223
Fee and commission income -                -                  6,982 1,354,444 -                -                
Share of profit -                -                  -                1,589,732 313,094 -                
Dividend Income -              -               -              -              -              103,187
Loss on sale of securities - net -              -               -              -              -              (2,428)
Mark-up expense 1,180 330 95,593 88,876 2,992 42,864
Salaries and allowances -                455,848 -                -                -                -                
Contribution to provident and benevolent fund -                8,175 -                -                -                -                
Net charge for defined benefit / contribution plans -                -                  -                -                -                307,962
Non-Executive Directors' fees 22,000 -                  -                -                -                -                
Other income -                -                  23,828 34,110 -                -                
Other expenses -                -                  26,228 -                -                187,386
Insurance premium expense -                -                  -                481,504 -                -                

Others
Purchase of government securities -                66,184 15,118,468 34,450 -                3,938,503
Sale of government securities -                65,174 16,108,284 7,607,191 -                6,274,635
Insurance claims -                -                  -                66,972 -                -                

For the six months ended June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

As at December 31, 2017  (Audited)

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)
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19 LIQUIDITY STANDARDS

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
19.1 Liquidity Coverage Ratio June 30, March 31, December 31,

2018 2018 2017
-----------------Total Adjusted Value----------------
--------------------(Rupees in '000)------------------

Total HQLA 993,388,080 896,354,690    962,730,144
Total Net Cash Outflows 546,953,989  539,366,389    520,941,525
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 181.62% 166.19% 184.81%

Minimum Requirement (%) 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

(Unaudited) (Audited)
19.2 Net Stable Funding Ratio June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
Total Weighted Value

Total Available Stable Funding (ASF) 2,041,199,384 1,946,812,485
Total Required Stable Funding (RSF) 1,314,468,911 1,229,522,456
Net Stable Funding Ratio (%) 155.29% 158.34%

Minimum Requirement (%) 100.00% 100.00%

20 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

20.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31,

2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks       10,155,982          7,475,822 
Due from financial institutions           600,000           1,614,839 
Investments    100,420,283      104,616,358 
Islamic financing and related assets - net 20.1.2       94,259,759        84,297,519 
Due from Head Office        8,309,348                66,226 
Deferred tax asset               21,837                         -   
Other assets         2,238,522           1,022,451 

216,005,731   199,093,215    
LIABILITIES
Bills payable                9,056                  7,037 
Due to financial institutions      22,467,000       24,798,000 
Deposits and other accounts 20.1.3     182,017,587     163,448,909 
Deferred tax liability                      -                172,401 
Other liabilities          1,272,911          1,433,836 

205,766,554  189,860,183    

NET ASSETS 10,239,177      9,233,032        

REPRESENTED BY
Islamic Banking Fund           250,000             250,000 
Reserves                      -                    4,584 
Unappropriated profit       10,029,731          8,662,859 

10,279,731      8,917,443        
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of deferred tax (40,554)           315,589            

10,239,177      9,233,032        

The SBP has introduced two liquidity standards through its guidelines on Basel III: Liquidity Standards. These are the Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). The objective of LCR is to ensure that Banks have an adequate stock of unencumbered
high quality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant stress scenario. The objective of NSFR is to reduce funding risk over a longer time
horizon by requiring Banks to fund their activities with sufficiently stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis. 

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000) 
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

20.1.1

20.1.2 Islamic financing and related assets - net
(Unaudited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

Ijarah 1,895,064       1,728,525         
Murabaha 1,004,982       316,442            
Diminishing Musharakah 61,135,583     60,591,346      
Wakalah 10,000,000    10,000,000     
Running Musharakah 3,308,591       1,138,052         
Advance for Ijarah 295,564          542,507            
Advance for Murabaha 4,573,477       2,968,494        
Advance for Diminishing Musharakah 4,432,536       -                    
Advance for Istisna 5,917,609       4,546,399        
Assets / Inventories 1,808,552       2,576,238        
Islamic financing and related assets - gross 94,371,958     84,408,003     

Provision against Islamic financing and related assets (112,199)          (110,484)           
Islamic financing and related assets - net 94,259,759     84,297,519      

20.1.3 Deposits and other accounts

Current accounts 52,723,392     48,389,707      
Savings accounts 102,270,427   87,258,027      
Term deposits 21,111,293      13,731,808       
Deposits from financial institutions - non - remunerative 95,995            105,001            
Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative 5,816,480       13,964,366      

182,017,587   163,448,909   

20.2 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

Profit earned 5,667,177        4,293,331         
Profit expensed 3,129,057       1,888,439        
Net profit earned 2,538,120       2,404,892        

Provision against non-performing assets 1,715                4,498                
Net profit after provisions 2,536,405       2,400,394        

Other income
Fee, commission and brokerage income 101,799           90,410              
Income / (loss)  from dealing in foreign currencies 23,144            (23,645)            
(Loss) / gain on sale of securities (21,762)            9,849                
Rent on Lockers 3,285              3,145                 
Others 346                 390                   
Total other income 106,812           80,149              

2,643,217       2,480,543        
Administrative expenses 402,443          317,375            
Net profit for the period 2,240,774       2,163,168         

20.3 Remuneration to Shariah Advisor / Board 3,960 3,180

For the six months ended

Commitments in respect of guarantees and letters of credit of the Islamic Banking Business amounted to Rs 267.226 million (December
31, 2017: Rs 271.654 million) and Rs 1,333.670 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 3,921.630 million) respectively. Commitments in respect
of forward foreign exchange purchase and sale transactions amounted to Rs 11,520.919 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 3,595.455
million) and Rs 170.200 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 2,439.128 million) respectively. 

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

(Unaudited)
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
20.4 Charity Fund

Opening balance 233,247 526
Additions during the period / year

-Income purification 334 244,105
-Penalty on delayed payment 268 723

602 244,828
Payments / Utilization during the period / year

-Health sector -                  (11,107)
-Others -                  (1,000)

-                  (12,107)

Closing balance 233,849 233,247

21  NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

22 GENERAL

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.

23 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

President and                        Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

(Rupees in '000)

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on August 2,
2018.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 2, 2018 has declared a cash dividend in respect of the quarter ended June 30, 2018
of Rs 1 per share (June 30, 2017: Rs 3.50 per share). These condensed interim consolidated financial statements do not include the effect
of these appropriations which will be accounted for subsequent to the period end.
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Directors’ Review
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the condensed interim 
unconsolidated financial statements for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

Domestic Economy

Pakistan’s growth trajectory continued in FY18 with a thirteen-year high GDP growth of 5.8%. Real economic activity 
maintained its momentum from the previous year; the agriculture, industry and services sectors all delivered an 
improved performance with LSM growth of 6% during 11M FY18. Average inflation remained contained, and well 
below targeted levels at 3.9%; however, the trend is changing rapidly as headline inflation for June 2018 reached 
5.2% and positive developments on the growth front remain tempered by a sharp deterioration in the twin deficits, 
intensifying the economic challenges. 

After declining in FY17, a strong export recovery of 13% has been more than offset by the sheer size of the import bill 
which, driven by rising oil prices and a strong demand for productive imports, grew by 15%. Consequently, the trade 
deficit widened by 16% to over USD 31 billion. Although the declining trend in remittances was arrested, growth 
remained elusive with remittances not even recovering to their FY16 levels. The current account deficit increased by 
43% to USD 18 billion which, at 5.7% of GDP, is an all-time high. With limited financial account inflows, FX reserves 
continued to decline, falling by 23% during the fiscal year to USD 16.4 billion. The Rupee has been under severe pressure 
with four devaluations since December 2017 eroding its value by 15%. 

The fiscal deficit, which was budgeted to reduce to 4.1% of GDP, has instead increased further, and is estimated at 
6.8% compared to 5.8% in FY17. Despite provisional estimates of an 11% increase in tax collection over the previous 
year, shortfalls to revenue targets remain. The response from the tax amnesty scheme has been below expectations, 
although there is some expectation that the resultant widening of the tax base would result in higher future tax 
revenue. 

The precarious external account has led international rating agencies to take a more critical view on Pakistan. While 
affirming the country’s B3 ratings, Moody’s downgraded its Outlook from Stable to Negative citing dwindling foreign 
reserves, the burgeoning current account deficit and declining access to external financing. Fitch maintained its 
Outlook at Negative, highlighting largely similar concerns. 

The uncertainty created by the political situation in the run up to the elections had led to the stock market being 
bearish for an extended period, with a net outflow of over USD 100 million in foreign portfolio investment in 2018. 
Equities have recovered somewhat post the elections, with the PSX rallying by 3.3% to post a gain of 5% since the 
start of the year. 

In its July monetary policy statement, the SBP increased the policy rate by 100 bps to 7.5%, the first increase of this 
magnitude since 2008. The reversal of the interest rate cycle is now in full swing with three hikes in 2018. The SBP cited 
pressure on the external account and highlighted risks to macroeconomic stability from the substantial fiscal deficit, 
higher oil imports and rising inflationary pressures. Private sector credit offtake increased by over Rs 800 billion (18%) 
in FY18, a significant improvement over the Rs 697 billion growth in FY17. Banking sector advances have increased by 
14% over December 2017, while deposits rose by 6%. Average banking spreads compressed by 17 bps compared to the 
same period last year as the rate increases during the first half of the year will only have a lagged effect on asset yields.

Performance

HBL’s domestic business continued its growth momentum, with deposits increasing by 8% over December 2017 
to nearly Rs 1.9 trillion, and market share rising to 14.4%. In this period, the Bank added Rs 119 billion in domestic 
CASA deposits, further improving the CASA ratio to 86.6% as at June 30, 2018. The growth momentum in current 
deposits delivered a 9.8% growth in just six months. Current accounts reached nearly Rs 690 billion and their share 
in the deposit mix improved by 70 bps to 36.3% in June 2018. With a renewed focus on quality lending growth, HBL’s 
domestic loan book increased by 13% over December 2017 with corporate loans, Islamic financing and consumer 
lending making key contributions. 

HBL’s reported financial performance remains impacted by the revision in pension costs, the impact of the multiple 
currency devaluations on overseas borrowings and the remediation, legal and regulatory costs related to the Bank’s 
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New York branch. In addition, the accelerated shrinkage in the international balance sheet has resulted in significantly 
reduced revenues and while the cost profile has improved, further reductions will be gradual.  As a result, HBL’s profit 
before tax for the first six months of 2018 is Rs 12.8 billion.  Profit after tax for the same period is Rs 7.6 billion, with 
earnings per share for H1’18 at Rs 5.16.

Average domestic loans for H1’18 grew by 28% over H1’17, with all businesses registering significant increases, and 
average domestic current accounts for the first six months of 2018 increased by 15% over H1’17. However, the impact 
of spread reduction coupled with a drop in international results was more than able to offset the 11% growth in 
average domestic balance sheet. Consequently, total net interest income has declined by 4% YoY to Rs 37.7 billion.

Core FX income improved by 4% as Trading revenues delivered a strong performance. Domestic fee income rose by 
7% over H1’17, excluding the impact of the expected drop in revenue from home remittances, as volumes have fallen 
by over 70%. Account operations, consumer finance and card related fees were key contributors to the growth in 
fees and commissions. The strong core domestic performance was impacted by a Rs 0.8 billion reduction in fees and 
commissions from the international business and by the drop in the Rupee which resulted in a loss of Rs 2.5 billion 
on revaluation of overseas borrowings. Total non mark-up income is therefore reported at Rs 8.5 billion, Rs 5.8 billion 
lower than in H1’17. 

The Bank has embarked on a global business and compliance transformation project through which it intends to raise 
its operations and customer service to world-class levels. HBL will continue to invest in this area, in state of the art 
technology, and in building on its market leading brand presence. Excluding the impact of pensions, and the ongoing 
costs of New York and business transformation, the growth in administrative expenses was contained at single digits. 
A positive recovery stream has led to a Rs 2.9 billion reduction in domestic non-performing loans, while overseas 
NPLs have increased as a result of the currency devaluation. Consequently, loan provisions have recorded a reversal of  
Rs 349 million, compared to a provision of Rs 502 million in H1’17. With stable NPLs, the coverage ratio strengthened 
to 94.4% and the infection ratio, down to 7.0%, is at its lowest level since the privatization of the Bank.

Movement of Reserves
Rs million

Unappropriated profit brought forward - restated 87,300
Profit after tax 7,570
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligations – net 287
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets – net of tax 27

7,884

Profit available for appropriations 95,184

Appropriations
Transferred to statutory reserves (757)
Cash Dividend – Final 2017 (1,467)
Cash Dividend – 1st Interim 2018 (1,467)

(3,691)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 91,493

Earnings per share (Rupees) 5.16

Capital Ratios

In June 2018, HBL was designated as a Domestic Systemically Important Bank (D-SIB) and is the only bank in the 
highest category “C”, which requires the Bank to reserve an additional Tier 1 capital of 2% of Risk Weighted Assets. 
With this in mind, HBL continues to follow a conservative dividend policy and optimize its Risk Assets. As a result, the 
Capital Adequacy Ratios continued to improve – the Tier 1 CAR rose by 88 bps from December 2017 to reach 13.0% 
and the total CAR increased by 104 bps to 16.8%. 
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Dividend

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on August 2, 2018 has declared an interim cash dividend of Rs 1.00 per share 
(10%) for the quarter ended June 30, 2018. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs 1.00 per share (10%) 
already declared and paid for the first quarter ended March 31, 2018.

Credit Ratings

The Bank’s credit ratings were re-affirmed by JCR-VIS at AAA/A-1+ for long term and short term respectively with 
the rating of its subordinated debt also at AA+. The ratings are supported by HBL’s strong momentum in its domestic 
business, improving asset quality, healthy capitalization ratios and strong liquidity profile and reflect the systemic 
importance of the Bank.

Future Outlook

The twin deficits that have plagued Pakistan’s economy had been managed down but have returned in full force. 
The increasing headwinds on the economic front pose major risks with even the most optimistic reports indicating 
a slowdown in GDP growth. A sustained economic recovery will be heavily dependent on real structural reforms, 
diversifying the export base to buildup foreign reserves and a significant widening of the tax net while exercising fiscal 
discipline. Average headline inflation is projected at 6-7% in FY19; nevertheless, the SBP expects healthy growth in 
private sector credit to continue, driven by higher working capital requirements on the back of increasing exports.

Some of the downsides that have affected the half yearly reported results are expected to persist for the medium 
term. However, HBL’s domestic business remains on its growth trajectory and the Bank’s capital is now at its highest in 
several years. This will enable it to pursue its objectives of playing a leading role in financing Pakistan’s development, 
furthering financial inclusion of the country’s population and expanding the digital retail payments infrastructure.  

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

We would like to place on record, our appreciation for the efforts of our regulators and the Government of Pakistan, in 
particular the Ministry of Finance, the State Bank of Pakistan and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, 
for their guidance and support, and for developing and strengthening the banking and financial services sector through 
continuous improvement in the regulatory and governance framework.

On behalf of the Board and the management, we take this opportunity to express our gratitude to our customers 
for entrusting us with their business and to our shareholders for their support and confidence. We assure them that 
we remain committed to maintaining the highest standards and a strong culture of good corporate governance and 
compliance in all our endeavors. We also acknowledge the efforts demonstrated by our employees towards the growth 
of HBL and thank them for their commitment and dedication.

On behalf of the Board

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & Chief Executive Officer
August 2, 2018
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ZÝ!ZsÅg7g^Åˆ»g™ŠÏ~"54jè FGEIEÑ†~ÃèU*ãÔ¼Š%û™́e~z=ZcÆ«g0*gÐn‰ŒÛ£Y]6,ZW,Z]Zzg
g'.5å GGH~ZcÔJÅEc*gu',ZõÆ‡âãZzggc{~Ñ†Æik,ZW,g„X'×h+',WVÎZŅ̃ZòäÅL~',tgëg¤/Zz^ÆË

YÅ« 2018 ~Wæã~p&¶ƒðì²»†6,zÃb4ƒ̂ìpZk~'×h+¶’góƒÏXíZÝ!Zs»IZiLo«
YÅZÍw�„Æn°¥Wæã 2018 Zg[gz9Æ‚B 7.6 Zg[gz9ìXˆZiLo«ZÏæ]~ 12.8 �„~

gz9ìX 5.16

‚(,|‰T~Óx»gz!*g~p&ZŸ†gkge 28 YÅZÍw�„Æ£«~ 2017 ÅZÍw�„~ 2018 Zz‰±ŒÛ£Y]
‚(,|‰X@*ëZ4i+~¶ZzgÎZŅ̃Zò}ò 15 YÆ¬bâ{Ð 2017 YÆ¬bâ{~ 2018 HŠHZzgZz‰±™.$Z»ƒÛ

‚»ZŸ†"ZW,ƒŠHXíÀ{ØZÚ†Wæã‚w',‚w 11 ~¶äï™Z,ZW,Z]%A$GXÆ!*)̄Zz‰±ä_54ø
IGH~

Zg[gz9g{̂X 37.7 ‚Áƒ™ 4

YÅ«�„Æ£.Þ 2017 ‚4~g„Yè̂gCWæãäZq-¢o»g™ŠÏ»bCÙ{HX±:ÅWæy 4 ãCŠ~igèIŠ!Wæã~
‚ÐiZZ+¶zZµƒ̂ìX 70 ‚(,|̂T~yzVÃÈYäzZàF,c]~áµ¶ÆZW,Z]÷áï7÷YèZyÆw~ 7

:Zzgz~ZŸ†ÅZëz�;]~Z»ƒ.$W6,cÔ+-%ÃÑ$k5ë EEYZzg»geÐ´:~ZŸ†÷áï÷X¢oãCŠ~±»g™ŠÏ6,
Zg[gz9Å¶ZW,Z0+Ziƒð²gz9ÅŠg~¶ÆZW,Z]ÅzzÐ}ò«g0*gŒÛ£Y]Å 0.8 ÎZŅ̃Zò»gz!*g~:Zzgz~

YÅZÍw�„Ð 2017 Zg[gz9g7g^Åˆì� 8.5 Zg[vyƒZX®Z**yâguZ\Wæy 2.5 ZiaçLâŠgð™äÆ!*)̄
Zg[gz9ÁìX 5.8

Jä‰.Þ),÷Zzg².5Õä FbR,Z$i¨é EEgÂÆ6,z�6,»x»W¸i™Šc*ìTÆfg)Zk»ZgZŠ{ZLW6,:ZzgÇƒVÅ}.â]Æ
£gÃ¬@RJ-áY**ìXZÝ!ZsZkyZy~uât»g~Yg~gÇÇTÆ�ZÃWsŠ~Wg^(ßYqÝÅYg„ì

ZzgâgL~‡Z+Z:',Z&+Åwzñ�ŠÏÅ',ŒÛZg~6,»xYg~gìÇX"54n.ç FGEIEEÆZW,Z]ZzgEc*gu',ZõÅYg~Ñ†Zzg),÷
R,Z$i¨é EEgÂÆâÎZñZOòZyZY]~ZŸ†ÃzZuyÐJ-özŠg3ŠHìXZq-µbàÆx¿Ð±)ÃuŒÛ£Y]

Zg[gz9Å¶Åˆì²«g0*g)ÃuŒÛ£Y]~™́ÅŠg~¶Æ!*)̄ZŸ†ƒZìXZyÓxúZïÆË~ŒÛçV 2.9~

7[ 1.9 ‚iZZ+ZŸ†H�½ã 8 YÆ£.Þe0*iF~ 2017 !ZsÆ±»gz!*gäZLZŸ±ÅgëgÃ',ŒÛZggnpƒñŠc
g3 CASA Zg[gz9ZŸ†HTÐ 119 e0*iF~ CASA ‚ƒŠHXZk²á~Jä± 14.4 gz9ƒ‰ZzgâgL¥(,|™
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report to the 
Members of Habib Bank Limited on Review of 
Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim unconsolidated statement of financial position of Habib 
Bank Limited (“the Bank”) as at June 30, 2018 and the related condensed interim unconsolidated profit and loss 
account, condensed interim unconsolidated statement of other comprehensive income, condensed interim 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, and condensed interim unconsolidated cash flow statement, and 
notes to the financial statements for the six-month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “interim 
financial statements”). Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these interim financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial 
reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our review. The 
figures for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 in the condensed interim unconsolidated profit and 
loss account and condensed interim unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income have not been reviewed and 
we do not express a conclusion on them. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of 
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim financial 
statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and 
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that 
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express 
an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim 
financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. 

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditor’s review report is Salman Hussain.

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated: August 6, 2018
Karachi
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2018
HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017

(Restated)
ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 230,370,238 230,256,066
Balances with other banks 22,343,649 28,777,991
Lendings to financial institutions 51,797,014 33,900,345
Investments 6 1,307,914,704 1,335,782,671
Advances 7 886,346,911 800,688,978
Operating fixed assets 8 60,072,441 56,920,682
Deferred tax asset 5,681,695 3,900,457
Other assets 74,393,486 72,831,923

2,638,920,138 2,563,059,113

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 36,367,561 33,617,261
Borrowings 9 331,736,321 395,486,210
Deposits and other accounts 10 2,014,153,927 1,899,511,435
Subordinated loan 9,992,000 9,994,000
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease -                   -                    
Deferred tax liability -                   -                    
Other liabilities 68,845,862 51,746,248

2,461,095,671 2,390,355,154

NET ASSETS 177,824,467 172,703,959

REPRESENTED BY:

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 14,668,525 14,668,525
Reserves 53,135,749 49,519,342
Unappropriated profit 91,493,452 87,300,494

159,297,726 151,488,361
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of deferred tax 11 18,526,741 21,215,598

  
177,824,467 172,703,959

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer      

(Rupees in '000)

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director

1

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to April 01 to April 01 to
Note June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------

Mark-up / return / profit / interest earned 13 71,914,076   69,838,650 36,636,636  36,108,452  
Mark-up / return / profit / interest  expensed 14 34,220,528  30,392,622  17,672,164   15,836,210  

Net mark-up / return / profit / interest income 37,693,548  39,446,028 18,964,472  20,272,242  

(Reversal) / provision against advances 7.2 (348,906)     502,062       (145,115)       377,037        
Provision / (reversal) against off-balance sheet obligations 2,671            (50,233)        37,962          (8,251)           
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 6.2 261,808       647,522       275,426        427,348       
Bad debts written off directly -               -                -               -                

(84,427)        1,099,351     168,273        796,134        
Net mark-up / return / profit / interest income after 

provisions 37,777,975   38,346,677  18,796,199   19,476,108  

Non mark-up / interest income
Fee, commission and brokerage income 8,271,583     9,221,887    4,217,517     4,899,186    
Dividend income 1,008,774    1,507,150     626,097       1,140,685     
(Loss) / income from dealing in foreign currencies (1,378,390)   1,075,603    (547,757)       516,964       
Gain on sale of securities - net 551,402        1,818,429     487,938       580,040       
Unrealised (loss) / gain on held-for-trading securities (53,243)        (23,641)        (7,655)           20,460         
Other income 126,558        764,112        109,693       586,917        

Total non mark-up / interest income 8,526,684    14,363,540  4,885,833    7,744,252    
46,304,659 52,710,217   23,682,032  27,220,360  

Non mark-up / interest expense
Administrative expenses 15 32,831,670  26,029,755  16,607,028  13,351,574   
Other provisions / write offs - net 107,823        66,299         14,222          28,774          
Other charges 309,220       507               303,116        406               
Workers' Welfare Fund 261,311         532,174        125,361        270,487       

Total non mark-up / interest expenses 33,510,024  26,628,735  17,049,727   13,651,241   
Profit before taxation 12,794,635  26,081,482  6,632,305    13,569,119   

Taxation
- Current 5,612,511      9,620,273    3,294,993    5,059,067    
- Prior years -               2,072,385    -               2,072,385    
- Deferred (387,929)      (609,699)     (274,713)       (441,760)      

5,224,582    11,082,959  3,020,280    6,689,692    
Profit after taxation 7,570,053    14,998,523  3,612,025     6,879,427    

------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------
Basic and diluted earnings per share 5.16              10.22            2.46              4.69              

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

2

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Profit and Loss Account (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to April 01 to April 01 to
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017
------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------

Profit after taxation for the period 7,570,053   14,998,523  3,612,025   6,879,427    

Other comprehensive income  / (loss)

Items that may be reclassified to the profit and loss 
account in subsequent periods

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - net 2,859,402  54,038         1,008,321   65,764          

Items that are not to be reclassified to the profit and loss 
account in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net 287,013      -                287,013      -                

Comprehensive income transferred to equity 10,716,468 15,052,561   4,907,359  6,945,191     

Components of comprehensive income / (loss) not reflected 
in equity

Items that may be reclassified to the profit and loss account in 
subsequent periods

Movement in surplus / deficit on revaluation of investments - 
net of tax (2,673,458) (1,499,538)   (1,699,519)  (732,648)      

Items that are not to be reclassified to the profit and loss 
account in subsequent periods

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking 
assets - net of tax 2,461          10,079          (107)            10,079          

Movement in surplus / deficit on revaluation of non-banking 
assets - net of tax 11,202         117,093        1,202          117,093        

Transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed 
assets -  net of tax (2,461)         (10,079)         107              (10,079)         

8,741          107,014        1,309          107,014        

Total comprehensive income 8,054,212   13,670,116   3,209,042  6,329,636    

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

3

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

 Statutory 
reserve 

 Non - 
distributable 

capital 
reserve 

 General 
reserve 

 Unappropria-
ted profit
(restated) 

Balance as at December 31, 2016 14,668,525 10,453,351 30,072,084 547,115 6,073,812 97,446,624 159,261,511
Effect of retrospective change in accounting policy -               -               -              -              -              (803,615) (803,615)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 (restated) 14,668,525 10,453,351 30,072,084 547,115 6,073,812 96,643,009 158,457,896

Comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the six months ended June 30, 2017 -               -               -              -              -              14,998,523 14,998,523

Other comprehensive income
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - net -               54,038 -              -              -              -                 54,038

-               54,038 -              -              -              14,998,523 15,052,561

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share declared subsequent

to the year ended December 31, 2016 -               -               -              -              -              (5,133,984) (5,133,984)
1st interim cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share -               -               -              -              -              (5,133,984) (5,133,984)

-               -               -              -              -              (10,267,968) (10,267,968)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -              -              -              19,717 19,717

Exchange translation realised on sale of Bank branches -               (371,022) -              -              -              -                 (371,022)

Transferred to statutory reserve -               -               1,499,853 -              -              (1,499,853) -                  

Balance as at June 30, 2017 (restated) 14,668,525 10,136,367 31,571,937 547,115 6,073,812 99,893,428 162,891,184

Comprehensive income for the period
Loss after taxation for the six months ended December 31, 2017 (restated) -               -               -              -              -              (7,267,976) (7,267,976)

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - net -               1,968,958 -              -              -              -                 1,968,958
- Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations- net -               -               -              -              -              (1,007,627) (1,007,627)

-               1,968,958 -              -              -              (8,275,603) (6,306,645)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
2nd interim cash dividend - Rs 3.5 per share -               -               -              -              -              (5,133,984) (5,133,984)

-               -               -              -              -              (5,133,984) (5,133,984)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -              -              -              23,240 23,240
Exchange translation realised on sale of Bank branches -               14,566 -              -              -              -                 14,566
Transferred from statutory reserve -               -               (793,413) -              -              793,413 -                  

Balance as at December 31, 2017 (restated) 14,668,525 12,119,891 30,778,524 547,115 6,073,812 87,300,494 151,488,361

Comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the six months ended June 30, 2018 -               -               -              -              -              7,570,053 7,570,053

Other comprehensive income
- Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - net -               2,859,402 -              -              -              -                 2,859,402
- Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net -               -               -              -              -              287,013 287,013

-               2,859,402 -              -              -              7,857,066 10,716,468

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend - Rs 1.0 per share declared subsequent to the year

ended December 31, 2017 -               -               -              -              -              (1,466,852) (1,466,852)
1st interim cash dividend - Rs 1.0 per share -               -               -              -              -              (1,466,852) (1,466,852)

-               -               -              -              -              (2,933,704) (2,933,704)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax -               -               -              -              -              26,601 26,601
Transferred to statutory reserve -               -               757,005 -              -              (757,005) -                  

Balance as at June 30, 2018 14,668,525 14,979,293 31,535,529 547,115 6,073,812 91,493,452 159,297,726

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

Total 

---------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------

Exchange 
translation 

reserve

Share
capital

Capital Revenue
Reserves

4

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Statement of Changes In Equity (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director



HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 201846

HABIB BANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January 01 to January 01 to 
June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before taxation 12,794,635              26,081,482                 
Dividend income (1,008,774)               (1,507,150)                   

11,785,861               24,574,332                 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,627,454                1,572,945                    
Amortisation 324,549                   260,975                       
(Reversal) / provision against advances (348,906)                 502,062                       
Provision / (reversal) against off-balance sheet obligations 2,671                        (50,233)                        
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 261,808                   647,522                       
Other provisions / write offs - net 107,823                    66,299                         
Unrealised loss on held-for-trading securities 53,243                     23,641                         
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net (16,431)                     (10,493)                        
Workers' Welfare Fund 261,311                    532,174                       

2,273,522                3,544,892                   
14,059,383              28,119,224                  

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets 
Lendings to financial institutions (17,896,669)             (15,626,875)                
Net investments in held-for-trading securities (127,627,547)           (77,476,802)                
Advances (85,309,027)            (73,511,896)                 
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 4,254,322                (4,826,148)                  

(226,578,921)           (171,441,721)               
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities  

Bills payable 2,750,300                (1,565,154)                   
Borrowings (63,749,889)            53,931,888                 
Deposits and other accounts 114,642,492            110,656,657                
Other liabilities 16,412,063              9,014,812                    

70,054,966              172,038,203               
(142,464,572)           28,715,706                  

Income tax paid (11,463,323)             (16,390,283)                
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities (153,927,895)           12,325,423                 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net investments in available-for-sale securities 105,850,961            (17,809,722)                
Net investments in held-to-maturities securities 45,562,337              9,651,352                    
Net investments in subsidiaries -                           (441,933)                     
Net investments in associates (345,847)                  (484,233)                     
Dividend income received 857,866                   1,390,173                    
Fixed capital expenditure (4,977,305)               (15,150,426)                
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 25,433                     14,708                         
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - net 2,859,402                (316,984)                     
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 149,832,847            (23,147,065)                

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of subordinated loan (2,000)                      (2,000)                          
Dividend paid (2,223,122)               (6,809,851)                  
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,225,122)               (6,811,851)                   

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period (6,320,170)               (17,633,493)                

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 251,508,365            252,149,958               
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,525,692                381,809                       

259,034,057            252,531,767                

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 252,713,887            234,898,274              

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

(Rupees in '000)

5

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Cash Flow Statement (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Rayomond Kotwal
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Aurangzeb
President & 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Najeeb Samie
Director

Moez Ahamed Jamal
Director

Agha Sher Shah
Director
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HABIB BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

-

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Change in accounting policies

3.1.1

The effect of this change in accounting policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, is as follows:

As at June As at December As at December 
Impact on Statement of Financial Position 30, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2016

 ---------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------
Decrease in unappropriated profit             (129,118)             (131,799)            (803,615)

              129,118              131,799              803,615 

For the six months ended
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

(Rupees in '000)
Impact on Profit and Loss account                         -                           -   
Impact on Statement of Comprehensive Income                         -                           -   

Habib Bank Limited (the Bank) is incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking related services in Pakistan and overseas.
The registered office is at Habib Bank Tower, 9th Floor, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad and its principal office is at Habib Bank Plaza,
I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The Bank's shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Bank operates 1,703 (December 31, 2017:
1,703) branches inside Pakistan including 47 (December 31, 2017: 47) Islamic Banking Branches and 48 (December 31, 2017: 48) branches
outside the country including in the Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ). The Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development (AKFED), S.A.
is the parent company of the Bank and its registered office is in Geneva, Switzerland.

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan for
interim financial reporting comprise of:

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with
those followed in the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 except as disclosed in
note 3.1.

Consequently, the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets. The Bank's previous
accounting policy (as described in Note 4.5.1 of the annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017), in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, required that a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular asset was to be
adjusted against the total balance in the surplus account or, if no surplus existed, was to be charged to the profit and loss account as an
impairment of the asset. The Companies Act, 2017 removed the specific provisions allowing the above treatment. A deficit arising on
revaluation of a particular asset is now to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS, which requires that such deficit can not be adjusted
against surplus for any other asset, but is to be taken to the profit and loss account as an impairment.

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP and
the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies
Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the
Companies Act, 2017;

Habib Finance International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank, has filed for voluntary liquidation and is in the process of
completing the required formalities in this regard.

The disclosures made in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been limited based on the format prescribed
by the SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 2 dated May 12, 2004 and IAS 34. These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements
do not include all the disclosures required for annual unconsolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as directed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular No. 23 dated Oct 4, 2017, the financial reporting requirements of the Companies Act,
2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.

6

Notes to the Condensed Interim 
Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.1.2

4 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6 INVESTMENTS Note

Investments by type

Held-for-trading (HFT)

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 190,232,041 115,414 190,347,455 47,907,444 -                     47,907,444
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 5,206,539 -                 5,206,539 17,918,321 -                     17,918,321
- Sukuks -                 -                 -                 1,999,062 -                     1,999,062

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
- Listed companies 176,874 -                 176,874 274,651 -                     274,651

Overseas Government securities 125,385 -                 125,385 149,311 -                     149,311

195,740,839 115,414 195,856,253 68,248,789 -                     68,248,789

Held-to-maturity (HTM) 6.1

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     -                     
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 185,102,492 -                 185,102,492 229,596,422 -                     229,596,422
- Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds 122,775 -                 122,775 1,177,868 -                     1,177,868

Debentures and corporate debt instruments
- Listed 9,134,303 -                 9,134,303 6,899,728 -                     6,899,728
- Unlisted 20,379,574 -                 20,379,574 18,078,775 -                     18,078,775

Overseas Government securities 10,055,397 -                 10,055,397 14,604,085 -                     14,604,085
224,794,541 -                 224,794,541 270,356,878 -                     270,356,878

Available-for-sale (AFS)

Federal Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 396,473,487 80,923,530 477,397,017 328,211,635 131,244,262 459,455,897
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 143,566,635 108,659,483 252,226,118 238,386,542 134,373,604 372,760,146
- Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds 1,631,221 -                 1,631,221 1,487,595 -                     1,487,595
- Sukuks 78,748,380 -                 78,748,380 83,205,706 -                     83,205,706

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
- Listed companies 16,636,844 -                 16,636,844 19,661,232 -                     19,661,232
- Unlisted companies 3,356,164 -                 3,356,164 2,711,847 -                     2,711,847

Debentures and corporate debt instruments
- Listed 3,918,870 12,612,665 16,531,535 283,688 15,378,666 15,662,354
- Unlisted 6.3 13,596,500 -                 13,596,500 14,086,144 -                     14,086,144

Overseas Government securities 6,970,837 -                 6,970,837 3,868,899 -                     3,868,899
National Investment Trust units 11,113 -                 11,113 11,113 -                     11,113
Real Estate Investment Trust units 55,000 -                 55,000 154,000 -                     154,000
Preference shares 97,500 -                 97,500 97,500 -                     97,500

665,062,551 202,195,678 867,258,229 692,165,901 280,996,532 973,162,433

Investment in subsidiary companies 13,945,202 -                 13,945,202 13,945,202 -                     13,945,202

Investment in associates and
joint venture 6.1 12,668,035 -                 12,668,035 12,322,188 -                     12,322,188

1,112,211,168 202,311,092 1,314,522,260 1,057,038,958 280,996,532 1,338,035,490
Provision for diminution in the value of

investments 6.2 (1,764,859) -                 (1,764,859) (1,503,051) -                     (1,503,051)

1,110,446,309 202,311,092 1,312,757,401 1,055,535,907 280,996,532 1,336,532,439
Deficit on revaluation of held-for-trading 

securities (53,209) (34) (53,243) (73,326) -                     (73,326)

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of 
available-for-sale securities (3,676,277) (1,113,177) (4,789,454) (900,806) 224,364 (676,442)

Total investments (net of provision) 1,106,716,823 201,197,881 1,307,914,704 1,054,561,775 281,220,896 1,335,782,671

As per the accounting policy of the Bank (as described in Note 4.4 of the annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017), the provision against advances of overseas branches is made as per the requirement of the respective regulatory
regimes. During the current period, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification & Measurement, became applicable for certain overseas
branches of the Bank. Accordingly, in respect of such branches, the Bank has changed its accounting policy and has followed the
requirements of IFRS 9, while determining the provisioning requirements against advances. Under this standard, provision against loans
and advances is determined under expected credit loss model. Previously, this was determined under the incurred loss model.

The adoption of this standard by certain overseas branches resulted in additional provisioning requirement of Rs 18.313 million as at June
30, 2018. This includes Rs 22.280 million in respect of prior year which has been incorporated in the current period and opening balance
of retained earnings has not been adjusted as the amount involved is not considered material.

11.2

Total Held by Bank 
 Given as 
collateral 

Total  Held by Bank 
 Given as 
collateral 

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements is the
same as that applied in the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those disclosed in the unconsolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------------------------------

December 31, 2017 (Audited)June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

6.1

Book value Market value Book value Market value

- Investment classified as held-to-maturity 224,794,541 224,401,635 270,356,878 272,433,165
- Investment in listed associates and joint venture 12,231,804 40,633,613 11,885,957 39,352,301

6.2 Particulars of provision held against diminution in the value of investments (Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017

Opening balance 1,503,051 866,152

Charge for the period / year 600,389 1,289,086
Reversal for the period / year (3,755) (203,605)
Reversed on disposal during the period / year (334,826) (619,614)
Net charge 261,808 465,867

Recoveries against written off investments -                 171,032
Closing balance 1,764,859 1,503,051

6.3

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017
7 ADVANCES (Rupees in '000)

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.
 - In Pakistan 702,664,896 628,791,839
 - Outside Pakistan 91,706,060 100,618,431

794,370,956 729,410,270

Net investment in finance lease - in Pakistan 17,688,671 17,127,661

Islamic financing and related assets 20.1.2 94,371,958 84,408,003

Bills discounted and purchased

 - Payable in Pakistan 21,251,880 16,751,077
 - Payable outside Pakistan 21,877,377 16,540,552

43,129,257 33,291,629

Advances - gross 949,560,842 864,237,563

Provision against advances
 - Specific (60,306,174) (60,792,948)
 - General (2,907,757) (2,755,637)

(63,213,931) (63,548,585)

Advances - net of provision 886,346,911 800,688,978

This includes privately placed TFCs of Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited (PIACL) amounting to Rs 4,857.022 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs 6,071.278 million) which is guaranteed by the Government of Pakistan and is subject to a relaxation given by the
SBP from Regulation-8 of the Prudential Regulations. However, mark-up income has been suspended on this amount and is only
recognised when received.

7.2

(Rupees in '000)

The market value of investment classified as held-to-maturity and investment in listed associates and joint venture is as follows:

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) December 31, 2017 (Audited)

--------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------

8
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7.1

Category of  Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total

  classification ----------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------------------------------------

Other assets especially 

mentioned 1,162,757 -             1,162,757 -             -            -             1,162,757 -           1,162,757
Substandard 2,584,598 1,750,606 4,335,204 1,194,573 210,475 1,405,048 1,390,025 1,540,131 2,930,156
Doubtful 1,222,682 660,506 1,883,188 611,341 313,607 924,948 611,341 346,899 958,240
Loss 42,433,268 17,119,314 59,552,582 41,368,838 16,607,340 57,976,178 1,064,430 511,974 1,576,404

47,403,305 19,530,426 66,933,731 43,174,752 17,131,422 60,306,174 4,228,553 2,399,004 6,627,557

Category of 

  classification Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total

------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------------------

Other assets especially 

mentioned 1,025,320 32,434 1,057,754 -                -               -                1,025,320 32,434 1,057,754

Substandard 2,872,439 794,075 3,666,514 1,159,974 166,073 1,326,047 1,712,465 628,002 2,340,467

Doubtful 1,534,738 1,022,442 2,557,180 767,369 417,505 1,184,874 767,369 604,937 1,372,306

Loss 44,823,375 14,932,806 59,756,181 43,688,631 14,593,396 58,282,027 1,134,744 339,410 1,474,154
50,255,872 16,781,757 67,037,629 45,615,974 15,176,974 60,792,948 4,639,898 1,604,783 6,244,681

7.2 Particulars of provision against advances

Note

Specific General Total Specific General Total

Opening balance 60,792,948 2,755,637 63,548,585 60,513,286 3,328,371 63,841,657

Exchange adjustment 1,500,765 127,124 1,627,889 782,290 72,468 854,758

Charge for the period / year 1,656,330 132,311 1,788,641 4,996,892 257,577 5,254,469

Reversal for the period / year (2,030,232) (107,315) (2,137,547) (4,689,330) (898,245) (5,587,575)

Net (reversal) / charge against advances (373,902) 24,996 (348,906) 307,562 (640,668) (333,106)

Charged off during the period / year 7.4 (276,593) -            (276,593) (400,719) -             (400,719)

Written off during the period / year (1,558,147) -            (1,558,147) (308,726) -             (308,726)

Transfer out on sale of Kenya and Paris business -             -            -             (591,554) (21,004) (612,558)

Recoveries against write off 221,103 -            221,103 490,809 -             490,809

Other movements -             -            -             -               16,470 16,470
Closing balance 60,306,174 2,907,757 63,213,931 60,792,948 2,755,637 63,548,585

7.3

7.4

December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Non-performing advances Provision required and held Net non-performing advances

General provision represents provision amounting to Rs 1,499.653 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 1,405.701 million) against consumer
finance portfolio. General provision also includes Rs 1,408.104 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 1,349.936 million) pertaining to overseas
locations to meet the requirements of the regulatory authorities of the respective countries in which the Bank operates.

These represent non-performing advances for agriculture finance which have been classified as loss, are fully provided and are in default
for more than 3 years. These non-performing advances have been charged off by extinguishing them against the provision held in
accordance with the SBP's Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing. This charge off does not, in any way, prejudice the Bank's right
of recovery from these customers. 

Advances include Rs 66,933.731 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 67,037.629 million) which have been placed under non-performing
status as detailed below:

December 31, 2017 (Audited)

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Non-performing advances Provision required and held Net non-performing advances

9
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7.5 Particulars of advances to directors, associated companies, etc.

Balance at the  
beginning of the 

period

Loans granted / 
transferred in 

during the 
period

Repayments / 
transferred out 

during the 
period

Balance at the 
end of the 

period

Maximum total 
amount of 
advances 
including 

temporary 
advances 

outstanding**

Limit sanctioned 
during the period

--------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------
Debts due by Directors or Executives of the

Bank or any of them either severally 
or jointly with any other persons:

 - in respect of Directors -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                     
 - in respect of Executives * (other 

than Key Management Personnel) 2,819,039 1,163,745 (1,654,928) 2,327,856 2,442,939 873,577
 - in respect of Key Management Personnel 142,108 91,600 (95,296) 138,412 213,884 55,607

Debts due by companies or firms in which the
Directors of the Bank are interested as directors
partners, advisors or in the case of private 
companies as members 15,991,842 111,885,849 (105,905,129) 21,972,562 23,806,516 -                     

Debts due by subsidiary companies, 
controlled firms, managed modarabas 
and other related parties 605,113 2,094,445 (2,071,682) 627,876 605,125 -                     

* These represent advances given by the Bank to its Executives as per their terms of employment.
** This is the maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the period.

Balance at the  
beginning of the 

year

Loans granted / 
transferred in 

during the year 

Repayments / 
transferred out 
during the year

Balance at the 
end of the year

Maximum total 
amount of 
advances 
including 

temporary 
advances 

outstanding**

Limit sanctioned 
during the year

--------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------
Debts due by Directors or Executives of the

Bank or any of them either severally 
or jointly with any other persons:

 - in respect of Directors -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         -                         
 - in respect of Executives* (other 

than Key Management Personnel) 2,876,769 771,450 (829,180) 2,819,039 3,099,210 771,450
 - in respect of Key Management Personnel 38,221 175,367 (71,480) 142,108 204,016 162,585

Debts due by companies or firms in which the
Directors of the Bank are interested as directors,
partners, advisors or in the case of private 
companies as members 10,404,154 169,816,908 (164,229,220) 15,991,842 25,397,530 12,573,928

Debts due by subsidiary companies,
controlled firms, managed 
modarabas and other related parties 2,685,681 263,742 (2,344,310) 605,113 2,663,766 13,893

* These represent advances given by the Bank to its Executives as per their terms of employment.
** This is the maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year.

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017
8 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 8.1 19,177,232    16,995,161      
Tangible fixed assets 39,694,766   38,991,464    
Intangible assets 1,200,443     934,057          

60,072,441   56,920,682    

8.1 This includes Rs 15,803.735 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 14,440.034 million) on account of a new office building in Karachi.

June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

   (Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30, 
8.2 Additions to operating fixed assets 2018 2017

The following additions have been made to operating fixed assets during the period:

Capital work-in-progress 2,182,071       13,772,270       

Tangible fixed assets
Land 63,799            -                    
Building 140,014          189,799            
Machinery 4,782              -                    
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 1,542,385       1,005,054        
Leasehold Improvements 344,108         93,390              
Vehicles 114,418          16,322              

2,209,506      1,304,565        
Intangible assets 587,299          183,499            

4,978,876      15,260,334      

8.3 Disposal of operating fixed assets

The cost of operating fixed assets disposed off during the period is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 394,512          119,788            
Leasehold Improvements 124,691          18,884              
Vehicles 16,868            3,272                 

536,071          141,944            

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

9 BORROWINGS 2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Secured
Borrowings from the SBP under

- Export refinance scheme 25,696,174    26,343,510      
- Long term financing facility 10,516,512     9,852,123         
- Refinance facility for modernization of SMEs 26,167            9,500                

36,238,853    36,205,133      
Repurchase agreement borrowings 200,177,673   279,802,790    

236,416,526  316,007,923    
Unsecured

- Call money borrowings 24,790,000    11,385,000      
- Overdrawn nostro accounts 744,396         1,540,136         
- Borrowings of overseas branches 28,233,357    28,348,800     
- Other long term borrowings 9.1 41,552,042    38,204,351      

95,319,795     79,478,287      
331,736,321   395,486,210    

9.1 This includes the following:

9.1.1

9.1.2

(Unaudited)

(Rupees in '000)

For the six months ended

A loan from the China Development Bank amounting to US$ 192 million (December 31, 2017: US$196 million). The principal amount is
payable in six installments from December 2017 to June 2020. Interest at LIBOR+2.45% is payable semi annually commencing from June
15, 2017.

A loan from the International Finance Corporation amounting to US$ 150 million (December 31, 2017: US$ 150 million). The principal
amount is payable in six equal half yearly installments from June 2022 to December 2024. Interest at LIBOR+5% is payable bi-annually
from June 2015.

11
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31, 

10 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Customers
Current accounts - non-remunerative 733,173,573 682,227,276
Savings accounts 883,154,635 864,002,017
Fixed deposits 295,315,833 288,149,686

1,911,644,041 1,834,378,979
Financial institutions
Current accounts - non-remunerative 5,006,243 4,607,043
Savings accounts 94,584,066 59,294,770
Fixed deposits 2,919,577 1,230,643

102,509,886 65,132,456
2,014,153,927 1,899,511,435

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017
11 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of deferred tax

(Restated)
Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of assets - net of deferred tax, on

- Operating fixed assets 11.1 21,348,495    21,372,465      
- Investments 11.2 (3,113,145)      (439,687)          
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 11.3 291,391          282,820           

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of deferred tax 18,526,741     21,215,598       

11.1 Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 

Surplus as at the beginning of the period / year 22,509,067    12,598,958      
Surplus recognised during the period / year -                 9,960,433        
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 3,227              15,504              
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation charged 

during the period / year - net of deferred tax (26,431)           (42,789)            
Related deferred tax liability on incremental depreciation charged during the period / year (14,232)           (23,039)            

22,471,631     22,509,067      
Less: related deferred tax liability on

- Revaluation as at the beginning of the period / year 1,136,602       693,788           
- Revaluation recognised during the period / year -                 460,427           
- Amount transferred from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 766                 5,426                
- Incremental depreciation charged during the period / year (14,232)           (23,039)            

1,123,136       1,136,602         

21,348,495    21,372,465      

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017
11.2 Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments

Market Treasury Bills (144,616)         (81,235)             
Pakistan Investment Bonds (3,063,063)    569,841            
Government of Pakistan US Dollar Bonds (26,481)          38,635              
Sukuks (62,390)          485,521            
Listed equity securities (1,565,258)     (1,794,580)       
National Investment Trust units 38,534           36,190              
Real Estate Investment Trust units 9,500              -                    
Overseas Government securities 8,307              4,460                
Other debt instruments 16,013            64,726              

(4,789,454)     (676,442)          
Related deferred tax asset 1,676,309       236,755            

(3,113,145)      (439,687)          

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018



HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 201854

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
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(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017

11.3 Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Surplus as at the beginning of the period / year 283,667         690,381            
Surplus recognised / (reversed) during the period / year 11,249            (390,952)          
Transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets during the period / year (3,227)             (15,504)             
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation charged 
   during the period / year - net of deferred tax (170)                (168)                  
Related deferred tax liability on incremental depreciation charged during the 

period / year (91)                  (90)                    
291,428          283,667            

Less: related deferred tax liability on
- Revaluation as at beginning of the period / year 847                 6,203                
- Revaluation recognised during the period / year 47                   160                    
- Amount transferred to surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 

during the period / year (766)                (5,426)               
- Incremental depreciation charged during the period / year (91)                  (90)                    

37                   847                    
291,391          282,820           

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Direct credit substitutes - financial guarantees

Guarantees in favour of
- Government 337,292          273,782            
- Financial institutions 996,919          441,000           
- Others 48,497,166    38,462,882     

49,831,377     39,177,664      
12.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities

Guarantees in favour of
- Government 462,552         269,851            
- Financial institutions 73,616            1,713,959         
- Others 112,591,815   122,433,335    

113,127,983   124,417,145     
12.3 Trade-related contingent liabilities

Letters of credit in favour of
- Government 29,676,239    49,835,960     
- Financial institutions 3,583,872      5,340,244        
- Others 92,836,434    78,286,626      

126,096,545  133,462,830    
12.4 Other contingencies

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 28,917,372     28,314,434      

12.4.1

12.4.2

12.5 Commitments to extend credit

(Rupees in '000)

These mainly represent counter claims by borrowers for damages, claims filed by former employees of the Bank and other relief and other
claims relating to banking transactions. Based on legal advice and / or internal assessments, management is confident that the matters
will be decided in the favour and the possibility of any adverse outcome is remote. Accordingly, no provision has been made in
these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

The Bank makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but none of these commitments are irrevocable and
do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

The matter relating to the Bank's New York Branch has been disclosed in Note 29 to the annual unconsolidated financial statements of
the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2017. There is no further update on the same.
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(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31, 

2018 2017

12.6 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase 150,194,397   131,801,937     
Sale 80,551,348    73,766,803      

12.7 Commitments in respect of forward Government Securities transactions

Purchase 29,357,272     20,243,788      
Sale 87,375,162     -                    

12.8 Commitments in respect of derivatives

Foreign currency options

Purchase 420,698         -                    
Sale 420,698         -                    

Cross currency swaps

Purchase 2,866,143      1,633,987         
Sale 3,151,761        1,707,050         

Interest rate swaps

Purchase -                 -                    
Sale 10,029,531     10,315,539       

12.9 Commitments for capital expenditure 3,489,145      5,026,435        

12.10

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

13 MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EARNED

On advances 30,858,253    25,922,489      

On investments in
 - Held-for-trading securities 3,582,715       2,904,364        
 - Held-to-maturity securities 9,260,558      7,744,553        
 - Available-for-sale securities 26,620,093    32,361,933      

39,463,366    43,010,850      
On deposits with financial institutions 336,078         445,269           
On lendings to financial institutions 1,256,379       460,042           

71,914,076     69,838,650     

The income tax returns of the Bank have been submitted upto and including the accounting year 2016. The tax authorities have
concluded the audit of the returns under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 upto accounting year 2016.

(Rupees in '000)

(Unaudited)                                 
For the six months ended

(Rupees in '000)
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

14 MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EXPENSED

On
- Deposits 24,524,188    21,280,990      
- Securities sold under repurchase agreement borrowings 6,610,182       7,270,523         
- Other short-term borrowings 1,530,221       898,700           
- Long-term borrowings 1,555,937       942,409           

34,220,528    30,392,622      

15

16 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3
Federal Government securities

(Unaudited)                                 
For the six months ended

(Rupees in '000)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since they are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer advances, deposits and certain long term borrowings,
are frequently repriced.

The fair values of traded investments are based on quoted market prices. The fair values of unquoted equity investments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are estimated using the break-up value of the investee company. 

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term advances, other assets and other liabilities can not be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for
similar instruments. 

Further to the disclosure on pension related matters as explained in detail in note 44.2 to the annual unconsolidated financial statements
of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2017, decision on the review petition was announced on April 3, 2018. Consequently, the
Bank has taken a charge of Rs 1,851.929 million representing the increase in the present value of the pension scheme related
defined benefit obligations. The amount has been estimated based on actuarial valuations.

In accordance with the Honorable Supreme Order the payments to eligible persons are prospectively applied from the date of
judgment i.e. February 13, 2018.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined on the basis of rates / prices sourced from Reuters.
Investment in debt securities denominated in Rupees are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP). Investments in debt securities denominated in other currencies are valued on the
basis of rates taken from Bloomberg / Reuters.

Operating fixed assets and non-
banking assets acquired in 
satisfaction of claims

Debentures and corporate debt 
instruments

Units of mutual funds

Overseas Government securities

Derivatives

The fair values of investments in units of mutual funds are determined based on their net asset values as published at
the close of each business day.

The fair values of Overseas Government securities are determined on the basis of rates taken from Bloomberg /
Reuters. 

The Bank enters into derivatives contracts with various counterparties. Derivatives that are valued using valuation
techniques with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using
present value calculations. 

Land, buildings and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on a periodic basis using
professional valuers. The valuation is based on their assessment of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes
in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly, a qualitative
disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------

Items carried at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities
- Fully paid up ordinary shares 13,865,276 -                     -                     13,865,276
- Real Estate Investment Trust units 64,500 -                     -                     64,500
- Federal Government securities -                     1,002,213,989 -                     1,002,213,989
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                     20,917,472 -                     20,917,472
- Overseas Government securities -                     7,097,707 -                     7,097,707
- National Investment Trust units -                     49,647 -                     49,647

- Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts -                     3,878,469 -                     3,878,469
- Unrealised gain on derivative instruments -                     73,341 -                     73,341
- Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts -                     2,177,809 -                     2,177,809
- Unrealised loss on derivative instruments -                     43,039 -                     43,039

Non-financial assets
- Operating fixed assets -                     -                     32,432,719 32,432,719
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims -                     -                     1,854,636 1,854,636

Items for which fair value is disclosed
- Federal Government securities -                     182,484,522 -                     182,484,522
- Overseas Government securities -                     12,305,787 -                     12,305,787
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                     29,611,326 -                     29,611,326
- Associates and Joint venture 40,633,613 -                     -                     40,633,613

54,563,389 1,260,853,108 34,287,355 1,349,703,852

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
----------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------

Items carried at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities
- Fully paid up ordinary shares 17,004,855 -                        -                        17,004,855
- Real Estate Investment Trust units 154,000 -                        -                        154,000
- Federal Government securities -                        985,708,629 -                        985,708,629
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                        16,693,355 -                        16,693,355
- Overseas Government securities -                        4,006,706 -                        4,006,706
- National Investment Trust units -                        47,303 -                        47,303

- Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts -                        3,902,373 -                        3,902,373
- Unrealised gain on derivative instruments -                        102,616 -                        102,616
- Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts -                        891,964 -                        891,964
- Unrealised loss on derivative instruments -                        50,418 -                        50,418

Non-financial assets
- Operating fixed assets -                        -                        32,264,531 32,264,531
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims -                        -                        1,967,665 1,967,665

Items for which fair value is disclosed
- Federal Government securities -                        232,717,654 -                        232,717,654
- Overseas Government securities -                        14,736,714 -                        14,736,714
- Debentures and corporate debt instruments -                        24,978,797 -                        24,978,797
- Associates and Joint venture 39,352,301 -                        -                        39,352,301

56,511,156 1,283,836,529 34,232,196 1,374,579,881

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of those of the assets and liabilities that are recognised or
disclosed at fair value in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements:

16

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018



HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 201858

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

17 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

Net mark-up income - external (4,607)            10,662           30,616           2,308             (1,285)            37,694           
Inter-segment revenue / (expense) - net 30,718            (7,327)            (25,565)          -                 2,174              -                 
Non-funded income 6,435             1,713              808                908                (1,337)             8,527              
Total Income 32,546           5,048             5,859             3,216              (448)               46,221            

Total expenses including provision 13,549           (464)               549                7,838             11,954            33,426           
Inter-segment administrative cost 8,492             1,238              239                 890                (10,859)          -                 
Total expenses including provision 22,041           774                 788                8,728             1,095              33,426           

Profit / (loss) before tax 10,505           4,274             5,071              (5,512)             (1,543)            12,795            

Segment return on  assets % 0.74% 0.98% 0.47% -2.78% -0.67% -                 

Segment cost of funds % 2.77% 5.20% 5.21% 1.86% 0.69% -                 

Segment assets (gross of provision) 527,710          564,587         1,273,331       206,784         132,395         2,704,807      

Segment non-performing advances 7,801              39,377           -                 19,530           226                 66,934           

Segment provision held (including general provision) 6,837             38,217            1,136              18,848           849                65,887           

Inter-segment assets / (liabilities) 1,156,219       (195,181)         (1,046,599)    31,942           53,619            -                 

Segment liabilities and equity 1,677,092      331,189          225,596         219,878         185,165          2,638,920      

Net mark-up income - external (3,899)               9,001                30,958              3,876                (490)                  39,446             
Inter-segment revenue / (expense) - net 27,716               (6,019)               (23,617)             -                    1,920                 -                    
Non-funded income 6,224                1,404                2,637                1,977                 2,122                  -   14,364              
Total Income 30,041              4,386                9,978                5,853                3,552                53,810              

Total expenses including provision 12,646              (213)                   1,073                 5,558                8,664                27,728              
Inter-segment administrative cost 6,066                885                   172                    635                    (7,758)               -                    
Total expenses including provision 18,712               672                    1,245                 6,193                 906                   27,728              

Profit / (loss) before tax 11,329               3,714                 8,733                (340)                  2,646                26,082              

Segment return  on  assets % 0.88% 1.06% 0.80% -0.13% 1.46% -                    

Segment cost of funds % 2.65% 4.83% 5.04% 1.35% 0.27% -                    

Segment assets (gross of provision) 510,273            477,658            1,295,184         227,413            118,408            2,628,936        

Segment non-performing advances 7,592                 42,465              -                    16,782              199                    67,038              

Segment provision held (including general provision) 6,933                40,516              872                    16,810              746                    65,877              

Inter-segment assets / (liabilities) 1,062,311         (130,699)          (978,849)          23,854              23,383              -                    

Segment liabilities and equity 1,565,651         306,443           315,463            234,457            141,045            2,563,059        

----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in million) -----------------------------------------------------

Total
Corporate 

banking

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

International 
banking

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

TotalTreasury
Corporate 

banking
Head Office  / 

Others

---------------------------------------- (Rupees in million) -------------------------------------

Corporate 
banking

Branch 
banking

Branch 
banking

Total

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in million) ----------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------- (Rupees in million) -------------------------------------

Branch 
banking

Treasury
International 

banking
Head Office  / 

Others

Treasury
International 

banking
Head Office  / 

Others

For the six months ended June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Branch 
banking

Head Office  / 
Others

Total
Corporate 

banking
Treasury

International 
banking
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
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18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------
Statement of financial position
Deposits 172,658 25,428 6,833,554 852,265 2,429,698 -          781,288
Maximum deposits during the period 232,076 50,672 8,614,881 1,320,432 10,769,550 -          2,896,068
Borrowings -          -                 1,458,744 759,358 2,186,950 1,214,972 -            
Investments -          -                 -            17,590,118 12,532,370 135,665 6,030,725
Provision for diminution in the value of investments -          -                 -            -            -             -          (18,980)
Nostro balances -          -                 244,010 755,150 10,353 6,562 -            
Advances -          138,412 3,298,158 627,876 1,500,000 -          24,315,687
Provision against advances -          -                 -            -            -             -          (1,726,437)
Mark-up receivable -          363 28,728 12,243 13,213 -          305,187
Other receivable -          -                 51 78,468 232,299 -          26,550
Mark-up payable 1,023 74 103,273 34,313 12,194 7,673 2,324
Other payable -          -                 15,868 -            24,891 -          2,443,935

Contingencies and Commitments
Letters of credit -          -                 472,826 -            -             -          10,913,419
Letters of guarantee -          -                 219,555 106,525 -             -          705,938
Forward purchase of government securities -          -                 14,131,224 -            -             -          11,407,338
Forward sale of government securities -          -                 -            -            -             -          2,154,567
Interest rate swaps -          -                 1,596,197 -            1,500,000 -          -            

Others
Securities held as custodian -          8,395 17,938,710 404,607 26,718,750 -          17,229,950

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------

Profit and loss account
Mark-up income -          7,206 147,959 120,887 118,479 -          659,965
Fee and commission income -          -                 104 -            1,287,852 -          11,541
Dividend income -          -                 -            -            513,089 -          36,162
Gain on sale of securities - net -          -                 -            -            255,787 -          -            
Mark-up expense 3,454 154 176,146 152,463 190,569 12,778 24,181
Salaries and allowances -          612,348 -            -            -             -          -            
Contribution to provident and benevolent fund -          7,339 -            -            -             -          -            
Net charge for defined benefit / contribution plans -          -                 -            -            -             -          2,237,482
Non-Executive Directors' fees 28,800 -                 -            -            -             -          -            
Other (loss) / income -          -                 (7,137) 24,275 (1,996) -          -            
Other expenses -          -                 21,056 -            1 -          408,954
Insurance premium expense -          -                 -            -            597,712 -          -            

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Joint 
venture

The Bank has relationships with various related parties, including its directors, members of the key management personnel of the Bank,
Group entities, associated undertakings, joint venture company and employee benefit schemes of the Bank.

Transactions with the related parties, other than those under terms of employment, are executed on an arm's length basis i.e. do not
involve more than normal risk and are substantially on the same terms, including mark-up rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties.

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Subsidiary 
companies

 Associates
Other 

related 
parties

As at June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement and other benefit schemes are made in accordance with the actuarial
valuations / terms of the schemes.

Details of transactions and balances with related parties as at the period / year end, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Joint 
venture

Other 
related 
parties

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Subsidiary 
companies

 Associates
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------
Others
Purchase of government securities -          8,297 83,917,802 -            -             -          35,962,913
Sale of government securities -          16,487 90,624,221 1,244,262 26,082,649 -          39,871,938
Insurance claims -          -                 -            -            36,436 -          -            

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------
Statement of financial position
Deposits 127,426 33,952 20,367,146 1,030,077 9,219,513 22,702 1,501,398
Maximum deposits during the year 165,193 46,305 21,888,137 1,094,208 9,716,844 63,856 2,211,732
Borrowings -            -                    479,694 1,247,874 3,312,516 1,104,172 -               
Investments -            -                    -               17,259,428 12,186,523 135,665 5,291,967
Provision for diminution in the value of investments -            -                    -               -              -                -            (68,800)
Nostro balances -            -                    169,804 3,130,468 -                -            -               
Overdrawn nostro balances -            -                    -               72,537 -                -            -               
Advances -            142,108 3,147,907 605,113 2,851,690 -            16,536,672
Provision against advances -            -                    -               -              -                -            (1,726,437)
Mark-up receivable -            246 18,843 94,744 33,268 -            211,963
Other receivable -            -                    -               57,492 416,040 -            -               
Mark-up payable 120 241 72,633 4,289 44,699 1,195 4,951
Other payable -            -                    8,066 14,496 380,935 -            1,459,635

Contingencies and Commitments
Letters of credit -            -                    366,972 -              -                -            13,447,606
Letters of guarantee -            -                    198,059 120,794 712,509 -            -               
Forward foreign exchange contracts - Purchase -            -                    -               661,261 -                -            -               
Forward foreign exchange contracts - Sale -            -                    -               659,694 -                -            -               
Forward purchase of government securities -            -                    13,232,566 -              -                -            2,104,644
Interest rate swaps -            -                    1,743,539 -              1,500,000 -            -               

Others
Securities held as custodian -            8,220 16,223,810 -              28,200,745 -            8,478,905

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------
Profit and loss account
Mark-up income -            3,634 126,452 314,337 30,426 -            501,223
Fee and commission income -            -                    6,982 1,671 1,354,444 -            -               
Dividend income -            -                    -               -              821,397 -            103,187
Gain on sale of securities - net -            -                    -               -              -                -            (2,428)
Mark-up expense 1,180 330 83,840 24,750 82,281 2,992 42,864
Salaries and allowances -            351,395 -               -              -                -            -               
Contribution to provident and benevolent fund -            6,918 -               -              -                -            -               
Net charge for defined benefit / contribution plans -            -                    -               -              -                -            307,962
Non-Executive Directors' fees 22,000 -                    -               -              -                -            -               
Other income -            -                    23,828 15,034 34,110 -            -               
Other expenses -            -                    26,228 103 -                -            187,386
Insurance premium expense -            -                    -               -              476,405 -            -               

Others
Purchase of Government securities -            66,184 15,118,468 -              34,450 -            3,938,503
Sale of Government of securities -            65,174 16,108,284 -              7,607,191 -            6,274,635
Insurance claims -            -                    -               -              66,972 -            -               

Joint 
venture

Other 
related 
parties

For the six months ended June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

 Associates
Joint 

venture
Group 

Entities
Subsidiary 
companies

Other 
related 
parties

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Subsidiary 
companies

 Associates

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)

Directors
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Group 
Entities

Subsidiary 
companies

 Associates
Joint 

venture

Other 
related 
parties

19

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2018



61HALF YEARLY REPORT - JUNE 2018

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
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19 LIQUIDITY STANDARDS

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
19.1 Liquidity Coverage Ratio June 30, March 31, December 31,

2018 2018 2017
-----------------Total Adjusted Value----------------

Total HQLA 993,388,080 896,354,690 962,730,144
Total Net Cash Outflows 546,953,989 539,366,389 520,941,525
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 181.62% 166.19% 184.81%

Minimum Requirement (%) 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

(Unaudited) (Audited)
19.2 Net Stable Funding Ratio June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
Total Weighted Value

Total Available Stable Funding (ASF) 2,041,199,384 1,946,812,485
Total Required Stable Funding (RSF) 1,314,468,911 1,229,522,456
Net Stable Funding Ratio (%) 155.29% 158.34%

Minimum Requirement (%) 100.00% 100.00%

20 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS
(Unaudited) (Audited)

20.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Note June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks       10,155,982          7,475,822 
Due from financial institutions           600,000           1,614,839 
Investments    100,420,283      104,616,358 
Islamic financing and related assets - net 20.1.2       94,259,759        84,297,519 
Due from Head Office        8,309,348                66,226 
Deferred tax asset               21,837                         -   
Other assets         2,238,522           1,022,451 

216,005,731   199,093,215    
LIABILITIES
Bills payable                9,056                  7,037 
Due to financial institutions      22,467,000       24,798,000 
Deposits and other accounts 20.1.3     182,017,587     163,448,909 
Deferred tax liability                      -                172,401 
Other liabilities          1,272,911          1,433,836 

205,766,554  189,860,183    

NET ASSETS 10,239,177      9,233,032        

REPRESENTED BY
Islamic Banking Fund           250,000             250,000 
Reserves                      -                    4,584 
Unappropriated profit       10,029,731          8,662,859 

10,279,731      8,917,443        
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of deferred tax (40,554)           315,589            

10,239,177      9,233,032        

The SBP has introduced two liquidity standards through its guidelines on Basel III: Liquidity Standards. These are the Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). The objective of LCR is to ensure that Banks have an adequate stock of unencumbered
high quality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant stress scenario. The objective of NSFR is to reduce funding risk over a longer time
horizon by requiring Banks to fund their activities with sufficiently stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis. 

(Rupees in '000) 

(Rupees in '000)
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

20.1.1

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017

20.1.2 Islamic financing and related assets - net

Ijarah 1,895,064       1,728,525         
Murabaha 1,004,982       316,442            
Diminishing Musharakah 61,135,583     60,591,346      
Wakalah 10,000,000    10,000,000     
Running Musharakah 3,308,591       1,138,052         
Advance for Ijarah 295,564          542,507            
Advance for Murabaha 4,573,477       2,968,494        
Advance for Diminishing Musharakah 4,432,536       -                    
Advance for Istisna 5,917,609       4,546,399        
Assets / Inventories 1,808,552       2,576,238        
Islamic financing and related assets - gross 94,371,958     84,408,003     
Provision against Islamic financing and related assets (112,199)          (110,484)           
Islamic financing and related assets - net       94,259,759        84,297,519 

20.1.3 Deposits and other accounts

Current accounts       52,723,392        48,389,707 
Savings accounts     102,270,427        87,258,027 
Term deposits        21,111,293        13,731,808 
Deposits from financial institutions - non - remunerative              95,995              105,001 
Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative         5,816,480        13,964,366 

    182,017,587     163,448,909 

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

20.2 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Profit earned          5,667,177          4,293,331 
Profit expensed         3,129,057          1,888,439 
Net profit earned         2,538,120          2,404,892 

Provision against non-performing assets                 1,715                  4,498 
Net profit after provisions        2,536,405          2,400,394 

Other income
Fee, commission and brokerage income             101,799 90,410              
Income / (loss) from dealing in foreign currencies              23,144              (23,645)
(Loss) / gain on sale of securities             (21,762)                  9,849 
Rent on lockers                3,285                  3,145 
Others                   346                     390 
Total other income            106,812                80,149 

        2,643,217          2,480,543 
Administrative expenses           402,443              317,375 
Net profit for the period         2,240,774           2,163,168 

20.3 Remuneration to Shariah Advisor / Board 3,960 3,180

(Rupees in '000)

(Unaudited)
For the six months ended

(Rupees in '000)

Commitments in respect of guarantees and letters of credit of the Islamic Banking Business amounted to Rs 267.226 million (December
31, 2017: Rs 271.654 million) and Rs 1,333.670 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 3,921.630 million) respectively. Commitments in respect
of forward foreign exchange purchase and sale transactions amounted to Rs 11,520.919 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 3,595.455
million) and Rs 170.200 million (December 31, 2017: Rs 2,439.128 million) respectively. 
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
20.4 Charity Fund

Opening balance 233,247 526
Additions during the period / year

-Income purification 334 244,105
-Penalty on delayed payment 268 723

602 244,828
Payments / Utilization during the period / year

-Health sector -                  (11,107)
-Others -                  (1,000)

-                  (12,107)

Closing balance 233,849 233,247

21 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

22 GENERAL

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified for comparison purposes.

23 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

President and                    Chief Financial Officer                    Director                    Director                    Director
Chief Executive Officer      

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 2,2018 has declared a cash dividend in respect of the quarter ended June 30, 2018 of
Rs 1 per share (June 30, 2017: Rs 3.50 per share). These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements do not include the effect
of these appropriations which will be accounted for subsequent to the period end.

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on August
2, 2018.

(Rupees in '000)
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